
 

1 

GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL  
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA  
MONDAY, OCTOBER 16, 2023  
 
 (Please turn off, or silence, all cellphones upon entering the Council Chambers) 
 

I. WORK SESSION–5:00 P.M. – LARGE CONF. RM, CITY HALL ADDITION, 200 N. CENTER ST., ROOM 206 
         

1. ROLL CALL   
 
2. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA   

 
3. OLD BUSINESS 

a. Public Safety Complex Repairs Update (Public Works)  
 

4. NEW BUSINESS 
b. Boards and Commissions Vacancies Discussion (City Clerk)  
 

II. CALL TO ORDER – 7:00 P.M. – COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 214 N. CENTER STREET 
Invocation 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 

III. ROLL CALL   
 

IV. PRESENTATIONS  
A. Veterans Day Proclamation (Veterans and Patriots Coalition)  
B. Services Provided by the County Clerk of Courts Office (Juile Whitfield, Clerk of Court) 
 

V. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
C. Z-13-23 Harry and Mollie, LLC (General Business and Industrial Business Park-1 to General Business) – 

East side of McLain Street between Oak Forest Rd. and E. Ash St. Ext. (Planning) – Cont. from 10/2 
D. SU-16-23 Joseph Taylor (Automobile Sales-Used) – West side of N. James St. between W. Holly St. and W. 

Vine St. (Planning)  
 
VI. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD  

 
VII. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS  

E. HOME-ARP Underwriting & Subsidy Layering Guidelines for Non-Congregate Shelter Unit Projects 
(Community Relations)  

F. HOME-ARP Supportive Services Program Guidelines & Application (Community Relations)    
G. Accept or Reject Initial Bid and Authorize Finance to Advertise for Upset Bids for E. Spruce and 706 E. 

Spruce Street (Finance)  
H. Authorization of Sale of Jointly Owned Property for 409 North Slocumb Street (The Fairlene Group, LLC) 

(Finance)  
I. Amending Special Revenue Fund Ordinance – Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) 

(P3102) (Finance)  
J. Grant Project Budget Ordinance amendment for the State Grants Miscellaneous Grant Project Fund 

(G1109) (Finance)  
K. Operating Budget Amendment FY23-24 (Finance)  
L. Chiller Replacement for Historic City Hall and City Hall Addition (Information Technology)  
M. HVAC Unit for Goldsboro Event Center (GEC) (Parks and Recreation) 
N. Veterans Day Parade – Temporary Street Closure (Police)  
O. Change Order No.1 Price Change for the Rehabilitation of Sand Filter #2 (Public Utilities) 
P. Adoption of an Ordinance Amending Chapter 53: Water and Sewer Systems of the City of Goldsboro’s 

Code of Ordinances (Assistant City Manager)  
Q. Advisory Board and Commission Appointment (City Clerk)  
R. Departmental Monthly Reports  
 



2 

VIII. ITEMS REQUIRING INDIVIDUAL ACTION  
 

IX. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

X. CEREMONIAL DOCUMENTS  
 

XI. MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS’ COMMENTS  
 

XII. CLOSED SESSION 
 

XIII. ADJOURN 





C







O

U-

0

0

03

a;- 

U

a 

o

o

3

0

a

o

a, 

o

un

Ot

CA

42Ln
lu

NQ. 

C '

C

O `

a ' 

U

N `

n

a

it

0-

0

CIS

o

Z

N

U '

v, 

N

4.
1

CS

O

kn

bU ,

oU

p. 

3

b

U

vi

O '

C

cs

Q

Cd

U

U

V > 

N

Q

cd

oU

pq

C

k

o

a

o

Q, . , 

o ? 

C7

o

o. 

o

a  

M

o

o °" 

o

o

a, 

4, 

W

C',

0.*

0. 

C7

v

Z

a°
i

cd

c

O

o

U

U

W

C7

b

Q, 

0

3

H

U

N

U. 

L6

o

U

N ° + "+ 

c

V)" ' 

cd "+ 

4. 

U

bap

U

Q

bA

vii

a

A ~ 

G  

c   .  ,  .

d 

S-' 

N •  

O

N

Ln

O

O

o

U `+ °'

C40

d

rO, 

O •

L7

O

Z

N

b

O •

b

U

bA

i, ^

C

Cd

N

cd  , 

O .

b

O

U  • .. -+ '".,  .   

O +-' ', ' '

b  +- 

y
cd  

cd .'   "   

p

y

w

o ° 

ee4

v 

vi

V

Cd

cl

v) _ 

cr) 

v 

C) 

W

H

ami

M' 

w64
W 

o

o

pp , 

E

cd, 

W `

o

7:

3 .    

W

U  

W

o  

W  

W -

b

W

0

x  •   

U    

x

o

o

x ,., 

x  

o

o~ .

y

x   ° 

O  , ° ( 

A

r 

N  

3

c

i

en   

C3

7:

3

o

U

U

x

O

U

N

UUUCd



£¤US
70

EUS

70 HWY

E

ASH

ST

E
US

70

HWY

IVEY DR

COMMERCIAL
DR

HARRY
IVEY

DR

GATEWAY

DR

MCLAIN
ST

E
US

70
HWY

0 500 1,000250
Feet .

The data represented on this map has been compiled by the best 
methods available. Accuracy is contingent upon the source information 
as compiled by various agencies and departments both internal and
external to the City of Goldsboro, NC. Users of the data represented
on this map are hereby notified that the primary information sources
should be consulted for verification of the information contained herein. 
The City of Goldsboro and the companies contracted to develop these 
data assume no legal responsibilities for the information or accuracy 
contained on this map. It is strictly forbidden to sell or reproduce these 
maps or data for any reason without the written consent of the City of 
Goldsboro.

Z-13-23 Harry & Mollie LLC
(GB & IBP-1 to GB)

Z-13-23
Harry & Mollie LLC
(GB & IBP-1 to GB)
Northeast side of Mclain Street Between 
Country View Drive and Ivey Drive
3519905459

CASE NO:
APPLICANT:
REQUEST:
LOCATION:
PIN #:  

REZONING REQUEST:



£¤US
70

EUS

70 HWY

E
ASH

ST

E
US

70

HWY

IVEY DR

COMMERCIAL
DR

HARRY
IVEY

DR

GATEWAY

DR

MCLAIN 
STE

US
70

HWY

LDR

LDR

Commercial

CommercialCommercial
Conservation

Commercial

Industrial

0 500 1,000250
Feet .

The data represented on this map has been compiled by the best 
methods available. Accuracy is contingent upon the source information 
as compiled by various agencies and departments both internal and
external to the City of Goldsboro, NC. Users of the data represented
on this map are hereby notified that the primary information sources
should be consulted for verification of the information contained herein. 
The City of Goldsboro and the companies contracted to develop these 
data assume no legal responsibilities for the information or accuracy 
contained on this map. It is strictly forbidden to sell or reproduce these 
maps or data for any reason without the written consent of the City of 
Goldsboro.

Z-13-23 Harry & Mollie LLC
(GB & IBP-1 to GB)

Z-13-23
Harry & Mollie LLC
(GB & IBP-1 to GB)
Northeast side of Mclain Street Between 
Country View Drive and Ivey Drive
3519905459

CASE NO:
APPLICANT:
REQUEST:
LOCATION:
PIN #:  

REZONING REQUEST:



£¤US
70

EUS

70 HWY

E

ASH

ST

E
US

70

HWY

IVEY DR

COMMERCIAL
DR

HARRY
IVEY

DR

GATEWAY

DR

MCLAIN
ST

E
US

70
HWY

0 500 1,000250
Feet .

The data represented on this map has been compiled by the best 
methods available. Accuracy is contingent upon the source information 
as compiled by various agencies and departments both internal and
external to the City of Goldsboro, NC. Users of the data represented
on this map are hereby notified that the primary information sources
should be consulted for verification of the information contained herein. 
The City of Goldsboro and the companies contracted to develop these 
data assume no legal responsibilities for the information or accuracy 
contained on this map. It is strictly forbidden to sell or reproduce these 
maps or data for any reason without the written consent of the City of 
Goldsboro.

Z-13-23 Harry & Mollie LLC
(GB & IBP-1 to GB)

Z-13-23
Harry & Mollie LLC
(GB & IBP-1 to GB)
Northeast side of Mclain Street Between 
Country View Drive and Ivey Drive
3519905459

CASE NO:
APPLICANT:
REQUEST:
LOCATION:
PIN #:  

REZONING REQUEST:



£¤US
70

E ASH ST

E
US

70

HWY

IVEY DR

COMMERCIAL
DR

HARRY
IVEY

DR

GATEWAY

DR

MCLAIN
ST

E
US

70
HWY

HB

SC

IBP-1

R-20

R-20

GB

GB
CD

GB
CD

R-16

O&I-I

IBP-1

R-12
CD

R-16
RM-NC

GBR-16
RM-NC

GB

IBP-1IBP-1
GB
CD

GB

R-16

R-16

GB

R-16O&I-I

GB
RM-NC

R-20A

R-9
CZ R-20A

GB

0 500 1,000250
Feet .

The data represented on this map has been compiled by the best 
methods available. Accuracy is contingent upon the source information 
as compiled by various agencies and departments both internal and
external to the City of Goldsboro, NC. Users of the data represented
on this map are hereby notified that the primary information sources
should be consulted for verification of the information contained herein. 
The City of Goldsboro and the companies contracted to develop these 
data assume no legal responsibilities for the information or accuracy 
contained on this map. It is strictly forbidden to sell or reproduce these 
maps or data for any reason without the written consent of the City of 
Goldsboro.

Z-13-23 Harry & Mollie LLC
(GB & IBP-1 to GB)

Z-13-23
Harry & Mollie LLC
(GB & IBP-1 to GB)
Northeast side of Mclain Street Between 
Country View Drive and Ivey Drive
3519905459

CASE NO:
APPLICANT:
REQUEST:
LOCATION:
PIN #:  

REZONING REQUEST:





D





P a g e  3 | 4 
 

 
CITY COUNCIL WORK SHEET  

SU-16-23  
JOSEPH TAYLOR  

(TBD) N. JAMES STREET 
AUTOMOBILE SALES-USED 

 
Staff comments in red.   
 

1. The proposal is for automobile sales used with no vehicular sales display or outside storage. This 
use would not pose any immediate threat to public health or safety.   
 
• Consider aspects of the proposed use or development that may have a negative impact on 

public health and safety.   
 

• Discuss conditions, if any, that Council might impose in order to make this finding. 
 

• For each condition imposed, if any, state the reason the condition is necessary to protect public 
health and safety. 

 
• Consider any conditions to be applied to the application. 

 
___ Yes, the use will not materially endanger the public health or safety  

 
___ No, the use will materially endanger the public health or safety 
 
 
2. There was no evidence presented with the application that indicates the use will injure the 

beneficial use of adjoining or abutting property.  
 

• Consider aspects of the proposed use or development that may have a negative impact on the 
value of adjoining properties. 

 
• Consider aspects of the proposed use of development that make it a public necessity. (Note: 

most private applications for a special use permit will not rise to the level of a “public 
necessity”) 

 
• Discuss conditions, if any, that Council might impose to make this a finding. 

 
• For each condition imposed, if any, state the reason the condition is necessary to protect the 

beneficial use of adjoining or abutting properties. 
 

• Consider any conditions to be applied to the application. 
 

 
____Yes, the use will not substantially injure the beneficial use of adjoining or abutting property 
 
____ No, the use will substantially injure the beneficial use of adjoining or abutting property 

 
 
 

hjones
Pencil

hjones
Pencil



P a g e  4 | 4 
 

 
 

3. The proposed use will be located in the General Industry Zoning District. The proposed use for 
automobile sales-used would be in harmony with this zoning district.  

 
• Consider aspects of the proposed use or development that may have a negative impact on the 

nature or character of the surrounding community. 
 

• Consider whether the proposed use or development is in general conformity with the Unified 
Development Ordinance. 

 
• Discuss conditions, if any, that Council might impose to make this finding. 

 
• For each condition imposed, if any, state the reason the condition is necessary to ensure 

harmony with existing development and uses of the surrounding area. 
 

• Consider any conditions to be applied to the application. 
 
____ Yes, the use will be in harmony with existing development and uses within the area in 

which it is located  
  
____ No, the use will not be in harmony with existing development and uses within the area in 

which it is located 
  
 
4. The Land Use Plan shows the property as being in the Industrial land use designation. The 

proposed use will not serve as a detriment to this designation and this use supports goals identified 
in the City of Goldsboro Comprehensive Land Use Plan.  

 
• Consider whether the proposed use or development is in general conformity with the City of 

Goldsboro Comprehensive Land Use Plan. 
 

• Discuss conditions, if any, that the Board might impose to make this finding. 
 

• For each condition imposed, if any, state the reason the condition is necessary to ensure general 
conformity with the City of Goldsboro Comprehensive Land Use Plan. 

 
• Consider any conditions to be applied to the application. 

 
____ Yes, the use will be in general conformity with the City of Goldsboro Comprehensive 

Land Use Plan  
  
_____ No, the use will not be in general conformity with the City of Goldsboro Comprehensive 

Land Use Plan 
 

hjones
Pencil

hjones
Pencil



702

703

510

709 B

713

600

603

709 A

711

708

707

610

717

709

202

513

620

307

705

200

706

709 B

610

711

204

710

705

712

311

520 Z

107

701

601

105

309

308

514

N
JA

ME
S

ST

W
GRANTHAM ST

W

HOLLY ST

N
GE

OR
GE

ST

0 200 400100
Feet .

The data represented on this map has been compiled by the best 
methods available. Accuracy is contingent upon the source information 
as compiled by various agencies and departments both internal and
external to the City of Goldsboro, NC. Users of the data represented
on this map are hereby notified that the primary information sources
should be consulted for verification of the information contained herein. 
The City of Goldsboro and the companies contracted to develop these 
data assume no legal responsibilities for the information or accuracy 
contained on this map. It is strictly forbidden to sell or reproduce these 
maps or data for any reason without the written consent of the City of 
Goldsboro.

SU-16-23
SPECIAL USE PERMIT REQUEST:200 W Holly - Used Car Sales

SU-16-23
Used Car Sales
Joseph Taylor
2599-98-2718

SPECIAL USE REQUEST;

CASE NO:
REQUEST:
APPLICANT:
PIN:



702

703

510

709 B

713

600

603

709 A

711

708

707

610

717

709

202

513

620

307

705

200

706

709 B

610

711

204

710

705

712

311

520 Z

107

701

601

105

309

308

514

N
JA

ME
S

ST

W
GRANTHAM ST

W

HOLLY ST

N
GE

OR
GE

ST

Industrial

HDR

Industrial

Industrial

Industrial

Commercial

Commercial Industrial

Industrial

Commercial

Industrial

Commercial

Commercial

Industrial

0 200 400100
Feet .

The data represented on this map has been compiled by the best 
methods available. Accuracy is contingent upon the source information 
as compiled by various agencies and departments both internal and
external to the City of Goldsboro, NC. Users of the data represented
on this map are hereby notified that the primary information sources
should be consulted for verification of the information contained herein. 
The City of Goldsboro and the companies contracted to develop these 
data assume no legal responsibilities for the information or accuracy 
contained on this map. It is strictly forbidden to sell or reproduce these 
maps or data for any reason without the written consent of the City of 
Goldsboro.

SU-16-23
SPECIAL USE PERMIT REQUEST:200 W Holly - Used Car Sales

SU-16-23
Used Car Sales
Joseph Taylor
2599-98-2718

SPECIAL USE REQUEST;

CASE NO:
REQUEST:
APPLICANT:
PIN:



702

703

510

709 B

713

600

603

709 A

711

708

707

610

717

709

202

513

620

307

705

200

706

709 B

610

711

204

710

705

712

311

520 Z

107

701

601

105

309

308

514

N
JA

ME
S

ST

W
GRANTHAM ST

W

HOLLY ST

N
GE

OR
GE

ST

0 200 400100
Feet .

The data represented on this map has been compiled by the best 
methods available. Accuracy is contingent upon the source information 
as compiled by various agencies and departments both internal and
external to the City of Goldsboro, NC. Users of the data represented
on this map are hereby notified that the primary information sources
should be consulted for verification of the information contained herein. 
The City of Goldsboro and the companies contracted to develop these 
data assume no legal responsibilities for the information or accuracy 
contained on this map. It is strictly forbidden to sell or reproduce these 
maps or data for any reason without the written consent of the City of 
Goldsboro.

SU-16-23
SPECIAL USE PERMIT REQUEST:200 W Holly - Used Car Sales

SU-16-23
Used Car Sales
Joseph Taylor
2599-98-2718

SPECIAL USE REQUEST;

CASE NO:
REQUEST:
APPLICANT:
PIN:



702

703

510

709 B

713

600

603

709 A

711

708

707

610

717

709

202

513

620

307

705

200

706

709 B

610

711

204

710

705

712

311

520 Z

107

701

601

105

309

308

514

N
JA

ME
S

ST

W
GRANTHAM ST

W

HOLLY ST

N
GE

OR
GE

ST

I-2

I-2

I-2

I-2

GB

I-2

GB

O&I-I

I-2

GB

I-2

I-2

GB

GB

R-6

GB

GB

I-2

0 200 400100
Feet .

The data represented on this map has been compiled by the best 
methods available. Accuracy is contingent upon the source information 
as compiled by various agencies and departments both internal and
external to the City of Goldsboro, NC. Users of the data represented
on this map are hereby notified that the primary information sources
should be consulted for verification of the information contained herein. 
The City of Goldsboro and the companies contracted to develop these 
data assume no legal responsibilities for the information or accuracy 
contained on this map. It is strictly forbidden to sell or reproduce these 
maps or data for any reason without the written consent of the City of 
Goldsboro.

SU-16-23
SPECIAL USE PERMIT REQUEST:200 W Holly - Used Car Sales

SU-16-23
Used Car Sales
Joseph Taylor
2599-98-2718

SPECIAL USE REQUEST;

CASE NO:
REQUEST:
APPLICANT:
PIN:





 

  

HOME-ARP 

 

 Underwriting and Subsidy Layering 

Guidelines for Non-Congregate 

Shelter Unit Projects 

 

 

 

2023 



Goldsboro HOME-ARP NCS Underwriting & Subsidy Layering Guidelines                                                              1  

 

Introduction  
The City of Goldsboro (the City) supports the; (a) acquisition/rehabilitation and development of non-

congregate shelter units; and (b) provision of supportive services for HOME-ARP funded projects, which 

will primarily benefit qualifying individuals and families who are homeless, at risk of homelessness, or in 

other vulnerable populations with its HOME American Rescue Plan (ARP) funding allocation (Federal 

assistance) from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development’s (HUD). HOME-ARP provides 

funds for homelessness and supportive services assistance under the HOME statute of Title II of the 

Cranston-Gonzalez National Affordable Housing Act of 1990 with implementing regulations at 24 CFR Part 

92, as amended. Requirements for HOME-ARP funds appropriated under section 3205 of the American 

rescue Plan Act of 2021, which will provide homelessness assistance and supportive services, are located 

at HUD Notice CPD 21-10. The Federal assistance regulations, as amended, require the City to conduct 

underwriting and subsidy layering reviews of each project prior to committing Federal assistance. The 

Federal assistance regulations also identify minimum elements the City must consider and require the City 

to establish specific guidelines against which projects will be evaluated.  

Underwriting is more than a technical requirement, and the term itself is used in several different ways.  

Depending on the context, underwriting is sometimes used in a limited fashion to refer primarily to the 

financial review of a potential transaction. Other times, the term underwriting is narrowly understood as 

a check the box set of static technical reviews resulting in a determination that a project does or does not 

meet a certain formula. In both cases, these uses of the term are too limited.  

In practice, underwriting is a reflexive process. Every project involves risk, and even the best project can 

fail due to unforeseen factors. The goal of underwriting is to both identify and mitigate risks across a series 

of perspectives.  In other words, the underwriting process is not an up or down review, but it often changes 

the project itself by imposing requirements to improve viability.   

In this sense, the City’s approach to underwriting is informed not only by traditional lending perspectives 

and minimum requirements of the Federal assistance, but a holistic approach to balancing the various risks 

inherent in any real estate transaction and the public purposes the City seeks to support – not the least of 

which is producing safe, decent, affordable housing and non-congregate shelters unit projects, that will be 

an enduring community resource.  

Underwriting Overview  
In reviewing applications for Federal assistance, as required by 24 CFR §92.250(b), HUD Notice CPD 21-10, 

and prudent business practices, the City’s underwriting framework includes, but is not limited to, 

evaluations of:  

• Regulatory requirements applicable to the project, including compliance with restricted use 

periods, property standards, and cross-cutting federal requirements;  

• Market risk, including whether sufficient demand exists for the project, the anticipated lease-up 

period, as applicable, and whether general economic conditions and other competition supports 

ongoing viability;  

• Developer risk, focusing on whether the owner/developer (including but not limited to the 

underlying owners of special-purpose and/or single-purpose entities) has/have the technical 

capacity to develop and operate the project and the financial capacity to safeguard public funds 

and backstop the project in the event of poor financial performance; and  

• Project risk (or financial underwriting), testing the economic and financial projections for the 

transaction including both sources and uses as well as ongoing operating assumptions.  This 



Goldsboro HOME-ARP NCS Underwriting & Subsidy Layering Guidelines                                                              2  

includes confirmation that all sources of project financing are available, commercially reasonable, 

and have been appropriately maximized prior to awarding Federal assistance.  

In addition to the above, the City will, at a minimum, also perform a collateral evaluation and assess 

environmental conditions to determine that the proposed project is suitable and viable for a project 

requesting Federal assistance.  

Assessment of Unmet Need 
All Federal assistance project applications must include an assessment prepared in a manner consistent 

with RFP requirements. Assessments must be less than six months old at the time of application for Federal 

assistance. The City reserves the right to request an updated assessment, if required.  

Additionally, the assessment should demonstrate the following:  

  

• For HOME-ARP units for qualifying households, a market assessment is not required. Rather, the 

owner/developer should demonstrate there is unmet need among qualifying populations for the 

type of housing proposed through their gap analysis, CoC data, public housing and affordable 

housing waiting lists, point-in-time surveys, housing inventory count, or other relevant data on the 

need for permanent housing for the qualifying population(s).   

• All assessments must be dated no more than six months prior to the RFP submission date and data 

sources must be clearly defined.  

  

Developer and Development Team  
Developer Technical/Professional Capacity  
In evaluating the capacity of the developer, the City will use the term more loosely to refer collectively to 

the underlying corporate entities and individuals that will own and control the single-purpose entity.  

Additionally, and as necessary, the City will require various guarantees and indemnities from all the 

underlying corporate and/or individual owners of the various limited partnership or limited liability 

corporation entities involved in the ownership and development of the project.  

Developers should demonstrate:  

• Recent, ongoing, and successful experience with the development of similarly regulated and 

similarly sized projects; and  

• The presence of adequate staff, with specific experience appropriate to their roles in the project, 

to successfully implement and oversee the project. This includes the assembly and oversight of 

the development team.  

The City requires applicants to provide lists of real estate owned (including partnership/membership 

interests) by the developer as well as all projects underway. The City may review the performance of those 

projects, including financial factors like net occupancy, actual DCR, cash flow received, outstanding loan 

balances, net equity of individual projects, and the developer’s overall portfolio.  

Applicants may also be required to provide descriptions of the role played by specific staff members 

relative to the proposed project along with resumes or other similar information demonstrating 

experience appropriate to the assigned staff member’s role.  

Financial Capacity  
Developers must also demonstrate the financial capacity to support the proposed project both during 

development and lease-up as well as during ongoing operations. This includes not just that the applicant 



Goldsboro HOME-ARP NCS Underwriting & Subsidy Layering Guidelines                                                              3  

has sufficient financial resources, but that it has adequate financial systems in place to appropriately 

manage project funding, accurately account for all project costs, and provide reliable reporting to the City 

and other project funders.  

At minimum, and as applicable, the City will review audited financial statements, contingent liabilities, 

interim financial statements, and individual personal financial statements to ensure that:  

• The primary development entity’s most recent audit demonstrates compliance with Generally 

Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and does not express material weaknesses in the entity’s 

system of internal controls or financial management systems; and  

• Financial ratios and trending are acceptable.  

Development Team  
The City will also review the capacity of the development team including, but not limited to, the general 

contractor, architect, engineer, market analyst, management company, accountant, attorney, and any 

other specialized professionals or consultants, as applicable.    

The development team should have the skills and expertise necessary to successfully complete and 

operate the development. Insomuch as possible, on balance, the development team should have worked 

successfully on other projects in the past. That is, while a developer may identify new development team 

members from project to project, an entirely new team may present added risk.  

In no case may any owner/developer/applicant or any member of the development team be a suspended, 

debarred, or otherwise excluded party.  

Identity of Interest Relationships & Costs  
Applicants must disclose all identity of interest relationships/contracts and/or costs involved in a 

transaction, including during the development period and following completion of the project. The City 

reserves the right to review any such costs further to ensure they are reasonable and consistent with the 

costs expected from arms-length relationships.  

An Identity of Interest (whether such term is capitalized) is any relationship based on family ties or financial 

interests between or among two or more entities involved in a project-related transaction which 

reasonably could give rise to a presumption that the entities may not operate at arms-length. The City will 

take a broad approach to defining identities of interest and expects all applicants to err on the side of 

disclosure. That is, if there is any question about whether an identity of interest may exist, the relationship 

should be disclosed and explained to the City.  

Beyond this general definition, an identity of interest relationship will be deemed to exist if:  

1. An entity, or any owner of any direct or indirect ownership interest in such entity, or any family 

member of any such owner is also an owner, through a direct or indirect ownership interest, or an 

officer, director, stockholder, partner, trustee, manager, or member of the counterparty; or  

2. Any officer, director, stockholder, partner, trustee, manager, member, principal staff, contract 

employee or consultant of an entity, or any family member of thereof, is an owner, through any 

direct or indirect ownership interest, or an officer, director, stockholder, partner, trustee, manager, 

or member of the counterparty.  

For purposes of this definition, family member means the spouse, parents or stepparents, children or 

stepchildren, grandparents or step-grandparents, grandchildren or step-grandchildren, aunts, uncles, 

parents-in-law, and siblings-in-law (or their children or stepchildren). It also includes any other similar 

relationship established by operation of law, including but limited not to guardianship, adoption, foster 

parents, domestic partnerships, and the like.  



Goldsboro HOME-ARP NCS Underwriting & Subsidy Layering Guidelines                                                              4  

Financial Analysis  
As noted in the introduction, the City views underwriting as more than just the financial review of a project.  

However, a review of the underlying financial assumptions is still a critical and core part of underwriting.  

In reviewing projects and as a public funder, the City must balance two potentially competing perspectives.    

Projects must be viable; that is, they must have sufficient allowances for all costs to maximize the chances 

the project can meet or exceed its financial projections and thereby succeed in the marketplace.  In other 

words, the project must represent a safe investment. However, taken to an extreme, a safe or overly 

conservative projection can also result in a project that is over-subsidized and risks providing excessive 

returns to the owner/developer.  

As a steward of limited Federal assistance for housing, the City also must ensure that costs are reasonable, 

they represent a “good deal” to the public and returns to the owner/developer are fair but not excessive.  

In seeking to balance these perspectives, the City has established the following review factors and 

principles.  

Development Costs  
In general, the City will review the entire project budget to confirm all costs are reasonable and the budget 

is sufficient to complete and sustain the project. All line items, whether paid for directly with Federal 

assistance, or not, must be necessary and reasonable.    

The City will consider the cost of both specific line items as well as the total development cost on a per 

unit and per square foot basis, comparing costs to other projects from the City’s portfolio.  

Selected Development Cost Items  
Acquisition – Acquisition costs must be supported by an independent third-party appraisal1 prepared by a 

state-licensed appraiser. The purchase price must be at or below the as-is market value of the property. In 

the event an applicant has previously purchased land prior to applying to the City, the project budget may 

only reflect the lesser of the actual purchase price or the current as-is market value. Standard closing costs 

from the acquisition may be included; acquisition reimbursement is governed by Federal assistance 

regulations.  

Applicants who purchased property prior to applying to the City, or following environmental releases under 

NEPA but prior to closing, may not charge or include financing costs associated with interim financing, 

whether from third-party or related lenders.    

Collateral Evaluation – For all projects, whether new construction or rehabilitation, the loan to cost and 

loan to value ratios must be appropriate and acceptable to the City2.  

  

Fund Soft Costs – The development budget for each project must include an allowance for the City’s 

internal project-related soft costs as specified in the RFP issued by the City.  Similar to lender due diligence 

or lender legal costs, the inclusion of soft costs allows the City to recoup its staff and overhead costs 

directly related to carrying out the project as permitted by 24 CFR 92.206(d)(6). These costs will be 

 
1  The City engages the appraisal process so that appraisals are prepared for and addressed to the City. The 
owner/developer is responsible for expenses associated with the appraisal. Appraisals, at a minimum, will include 
the following values: (a) for rehabilitation projects: as-is, after-rehabilitation cost approach, and after-rehabilitation 
income approach; (b) for new construction projects: land value, after-construction cost approach based on plans and 
specifications, and after-construction income approach based on the project’s projections.  
 
2 The City’s thorough review of an appraisal includes determination of appropriate Loan to Value and Loan to Cost 
limits. 
 



Goldsboro HOME-ARP NCS Underwriting & Subsidy Layering Guidelines                                                              5  

included in the Federal assistance and will be drawn directly from HUD by the City rather than via payment 

requests from the project owner.  

Construction Interest – Any budgeted line item for construction interest must be supported by developer 

prepared cash flow projections, modeling the actual expenditure of development costs and the anticipated 

pay-in of Federal assistance and other construction period sources For projection purposes, only interest 

from the date of initial closing through the end of the month in which the building(s) is (are) approved for 

occupancy may be included as construction interest. Additional interest following that date and prior to 

the conversion to (or closing on) permanent debt must be separately itemized and modeled. In most cases, 

this should be included in the lease up reserve noted in the Reserves Section.  

  

Contractor Fees – Contractor fees are limited as a percentage of net construction costs as further 

identified below. Net construction costs exclude the contractor fees, any budgeted contingency, if 

applicable, and (even if otherwise included in the construction contract) permits and builder’s risk 

insurance.  

• Contractor Profit: 6% of net construction costs.  

• General Requirements/General Conditions: 6% of net construction costs. General requirements 

include on-site supervision, temporary or construction signs, field office expenses, temporary 

sheds and toilets, temporary utilities, equipment rental, clean-up costs, rubbish removal, 

watchmen’s wages, material inspection and tests, all of the builder’s insurance (except builder’s 

risk), temporary walkways, temporary fences, and other similar expenses.  

• Contractor Overhead: 2% of net construction costs.  

With prior approval of the City, contractor fees may vary from the limits above provided the gross 

contractor fees do not exceed 14% of net construction costs.  

  

The City does not permit a contingency to be included within a property’s construction estimate or 

construction contract, unless such contingency is required in writing by HUD, another governmental 

agency, or an independent third party.  

  

Contingencies – Applicants should include a contingency (inclusive of hard and soft costs) related to the 

amount of risk involved with the project. The contingency will be measured as a percentage of hard costs 

(including the construction contract plus any separate contracts for off-site work but excluding contractor 

fees).  

• New construction projects should include a contingency of 5% to 10% of hard costs;  

• Acquisition/rehabilitation projects, including adaptive reuse projects, should include a 

contingency of up to 10% of hard costs; the City may consider a higher contingency based on the 

size and complexity of the rehabilitation or adaptive reuse.  

The City may consider higher contingencies based on identified risk factors such as the known need for 

environmental remediation or poor subsurface soils.  

  

The City does not permit a contingency to be included within a property’s construction estimate or 

construction contract, unless such contingency is required in writing by HUD, another governmental 

agency, or an independent third party.  

    

Developer Fees – Developer fees are intended to compensate a developer for the time and effort of 

assembling a project, overseeing the development team, and carrying a project to fruition. Developer fees 

are also intended to compensate for the risk inherent in the development process, including that not every 

potential project proves viable and that developers must necessarily advance funds for their own 



Goldsboro HOME-ARP NCS Underwriting & Subsidy Layering Guidelines                                                              6  

operating costs and various third-party predevelopment costs prior to closing (or in some cases for projects 

that never proceed). Therefore, the City allows the inclusion of developer fees as follows:  

Developer’s fees for properties that have not been occupied as residential rental housing at any time 

during the year preceding the date of the option, purchase contract, or deed for the subject property,  

which is furnished with the initial application with respect to site control.  

  

Identity of Interest Does Not Exist  Identity of Interest Does Exist  

The Developer’s Fee included in Property Costs and 
Adjusted Basis must be less than or equal to: 

  

18% of Adjusted Basis* 

The Developer’s Fee included in Property Costs and 
Adjusted Basis must be less than or equal to the lesser of: 

  

18% of Adjusted Basis* 
  

and 
  

22% of Adjusted Basis* (minus Builder’s Profit) 

  
* Adjusted Basis, which by definition, excludes land and any other costs which are not capitalized and depreciated, and 
which, for the purposes of the Developer’s Fee formulas provided above also excludes property costs in excess of the 
Fund property cost limits, and the Developer’s Fee itself.  
  

The maximum Developer's Fee is further limited to the amount of Developer's Fee that is actually paid, or 

otherwise earned or recognized as income, from one unrelated individual, entity, or both to another 

individual, entity, or both as compensation for the work, costs and risks associated with the development 

of a property.   

  

The equations used to determine the maximum amount of Developer’s Fee apply to the total of the 

amount listed in the application for Developer’s Fee, and to any separately listed Consultant’s Fees or other 

costs relating to the development work and costs associated with the development of a property.  

  

Additional Developer Fee information:  

  

• “Double dipping” the Developer’s Fee is not permitted. For projects requesting multiple sources 

from the City, the combined Developer Fee must be within the developer fee schedule, as noted 

herein.  

  

• The developer fee schedule, as noted herein, provides a calculation for the maximum allowable 

developer fee. The maximum allowable developer is not a guaranteed amount. During 

underwriting, the City will determine an appropriate and acceptable developer fee.  

  

Reserves – Capitalized reserves to facilitate the initial start-up and to protect the ongoing viability of the 

project will include the following:  

• Deficit Reserve: The City anticipates that in most cases, developments with predicted deficits 

during the compliance and restricted use periods would not be funded. However, in the event a 

development’s long-term operating proforma projects actual cash deficits during the compliance 

and restricted use periods, an operating deficit reserve must be included in the development 

budget in an amount sufficient, considering any interest on reserve balances, to fully fund all 

predicted deficits through the compliance and restricted use periods.    

• Operating Cost Assistance Reserve: Pursuant to the Notice, Operating Cost Assistance is only 

available for Rental projects; Non-Congregate Shelter Unit projects are ineligible to receive 



Goldsboro HOME-ARP NCS Underwriting & Subsidy Layering Guidelines                                                              7  

Operating Cost Assistance. For projects where the City’s underwriting anticipates operating 

deficits for the HOME-ARP rental units during the compliance period, at the City’s sole discretion 

and subject to availability of HOME-ARP funds, HOME-ARP funds may fund an operating cost 

assistance reserve to address the operating deficits of the HOME-ARP rental units restricted for 

qualifying households during the compliance period.  

• Operating Reserve: If required by the City, an operating reserve in an amount acceptable to the 

City, anticipated to be six (6) months of underwritten operating expenses, reserve deposits, and 

amortizing debt service, must be included in the development budget. The operating reserve is 

intended as an unexpected rainy-day fund and will only be accessible after a project has achieved 

stabilized occupancy.  

• Replacement Reserve: A capitalized replacement reserve may be included in the development 

budget. The capitalized replacement reserve should be funded at (i) an amount that realistically 

covers the cost of replacing covered items; and (ii) for rehabilitation projects, the amount 

determined by a capital needs assessment approved by the City. An expensed replacement 

reserve, as outlined in the Operating Costs section, must be included in the development budget.  

• Preservation Reserve: Following the completion of construction, at a minimum and if required by 

the City, project owner shall make annual deposits and/or annual contributions of 50% of surplus 

cash to a preservation reserve.  

• Other: The City may consider other specialized reserves as appropriate based on unique features 

of the project and/or requirements of other funding sources. These may include special security 

reserves, supportive service reserves, or transition reserves for projects with expiring project 

based rental assistance contracts, etc.  

Operating Cost Assistance  
Subject to availability of HOME-ARP funds, the City may capitalize an operating cost assistance reserve for 

HOME-ARP-assisted units restricted for occupancy by qualifying populations in a rental project where the 

City determines in its underwriting that the reserve is necessary to maintain the HOME-ARP units’ long-

term operational feasibility. The allowable amount of the reserve shall not exceed the amount determined 

by the Fund to be necessary to provide operating cost assistance for HOME-ARP units restricted for 

occupancy by qualifying populations for the 15-year HOME-ARP minimum compliance period.   

  

The operating cost assistance reserve for HOME-ARP units for qualifying households must be held by the 

City in an interest-bearing account and sized, based on an analysis of projected deficits remaining after the 

expected payments toward rent by qualifying households are applied to the units’ share of operating costs. 

Funds in a capitalized operating cost assistance reserve can only be drawn to address operating deficits 

associated with HOME-ARP units restricted for occupancy by the qualifying populations. Any unexpended 

operating cost assistance reserve remaining at the end of the compliance period must be returned as 

follows:   

 

• If the HOME-ARP project will not continue to operate in accordance with the HOME-ARP 

requirements and serve qualifying households beyond the 15-year HOME-ARP compliance period 

and the HOME-ARP grant has expired or is closed out, the remaining operating cost assistance 

reserve funds will be returned to HUD.  

  

Operating costs include costs for administrative expenses, property management fees, insurance, utilities, 

property taxes, and maintenance of a unit that is designated as a HOME-ARP-assisted unit and required to 

be occupied by a qualifying household. Operating costs must be reasonable and appropriate for the area, 

size, population(s) served, and type of project.   

  



Goldsboro HOME-ARP NCS Underwriting & Subsidy Layering Guidelines                                                              8  

Project administrative expenses include payroll costs, which are gross salaries and wages paid to 

employees assigned to the property, including payroll taxes, employee compensation, and employee 

benefits; employee education, training, and travel; advertising; and general administrative costs which are 

costs for goods and services required for administration of the housing, including rental or purchase of 

equipment, supplies, legal charges, bank charges, utilities, telephone/internet services, insurance, and 

other administrative costs that are reasonable and customary for the general administration of a rental 

unit occupied by qualifying populations. HOME-ARP permits the pro-rated staffing costs of a Resident 

Services Coordinator to be included in the operating costs allocated to a HOME-ARP unit for low-income 

or qualifying households if such costs are not already paid by another source. Typically, the role of a 

Resident Services Coordinator is to arrange community activities for residents and link residents to outside 

service agencies as needed.   

  

A property management fee includes the total fee paid to a management agent by the owner for the day- 

to-day management of a HOME-ARP rental unit restricted for occupancy by qualifying populations. A 

management agent must cover the costs of supervising and overseeing operations of a HOME-ARP unit 

out of the fee they receive.  

  

Operating Revenues for Non-Congregate Shelter Units  
A non-congregate shelter (NCS) is one or more buildings that provide private units or rooms as temporary 

shelter to individuals and families and does not require occupants to sign a lease or occupancy agreement. 

HOME-ARP funds may be used to acquire and develop HOME-ARP NCS for individuals and families in 

qualifying populations. This activity may include but is not limited to the acquisition of land and 

construction of HOME-ARP NCS or acquisition and/or rehabilitation of existing structures such as motels, 

hotels, or other facilities to be used for HOME-ARP NCS. HOME-ARP funds may not be used to pay the 

operating costs of HOME-ARP NCS. Consequently, the owner/developer must evidence the availability of 

ongoing operating funds for HOME-ARP NCS so the proposed project will be viable through the restricted 

use period (similar to the compliance period noted throughout these Guidelines).  

Operating Costs  
The City will review an applicant’s projection of operating expenses to ensure they are reasonable and 

adequate to sustain ongoing operations of the project throughout the restricted use period. In evaluating 

a proposed operating budget, the City will compare the project's costs to (i) actual operating expenses of 

comparable projects in the applicant’s existing portfolio of real-estate owned (insomuch as possible, 

comparable projects will be in the same vicinity and operated by the same management company); and/or 

(ii) actual operating expenses of other comparable projects in the City’s portfolio.  

For purposes of the long-term operating proforma, operating expenses, including reserve deposits, will 

generally be inflated at no less than 3% per year. The City reserves the right to stress proposals for 

underwriting purposes to assess the impact of higher operating cost factors, such as modeling the impact 

of higher inflation rates in general for specific items of cost (for example, assessing the impact of high rates 

of increase for insurance or development paid utility costs).  

Selected Items of Operating Cost  
Fund Federal assistance Monitoring Fee – Pursuant to 24 CFR §92.214(b)(1)(i), the City may assess an 

annual Federal assistance Monitoring fee. The operating budget for each project must include an 

allowance for the City’s Federal assistance Monitoring Fee as may be specified in the RFP issued by the 

City.  

Property Management Fees – A realistic property management fee should be included.  In the event an 

excessive management fee is proposed, the City will lower it.  

 



Goldsboro HOME-ARP NCS Underwriting & Subsidy Layering Guidelines                                                              9  

Property Taxes – Applicants must provide detailed explanations of property tax projections and, as 

applicable, provide documentation that any anticipated partial or full exemptions or payments in lieu of 

taxes (PILOT) have been approved by the appropriate tax assessor. The City, at its option, may require 

confirmation from the tax assessor of the applicant’s projection.  

Replacement Reserve Deposits – Unless otherwise approved by the City, the operating budget must include 

minimum replacement reserve deposits of:  

• New Construction: $350 per-unit, per-year  

• Rehabilitation: The greater of (i) $350 per-unit, per-year; or (ii) a higher amount established by a 

Capital Needs Assessment (CNA) approved by the City.  

Note: The City will reserve the right within a project’s transactional documents to require periodic CNAs 

for all projects and to adjust ongoing replacement reserve deposits based on the results of the CNA and 

other factors to ensure that the replacement reserve is sufficient to address all anticipated needs for the 

project’s compliance and restricted use periods or the term of the City’s loan, whichever is longer.  

Items Payable only from Surplus Cash  
Certain costs, sometimes identified by project owners as operating costs cannot be included in the 

operating budget and will only be payable from surplus cash (aka cash flow). These include:  

• Incentive Management Fees payable in addition to the allowable management fees noted above, 

whether paid to related party or independent third-party management fees.  

 

• Asset Management Fees payable to any investor, general or limited partner, or member of the 

ownership entity.  

 

• Deferred Developer Fees  

 

• Operating Deficit Loan Payments made to any related party including any investor, general or 

limited partner, or members of the ownership entity.  

• Other payments to investors, general or limited partners, or members of the ownership entity, 

however characterized, including but not limited to negative adjustors, yield maintenance fees, 

etc.  

Ongoing Economic Viability  
The City will review the ongoing economic viability of all projects, considering long-term projections of 

revenues and expenses. Projects must demonstrate they can be expected to remain viable for at least the 

compliance and restricted use periods, as applicable, considering trending assumptions noted above, as 

well as any other changes in operating revenues or expenses that can reasonably be anticipated based on 

other information available to the City or other project funders. In particular, the City will review the debt 

coverage ratio and operating margin as outlined below.  

Debt Coverage Ratio  
Projects must demonstrate a positive debt coverage ratio (DCR) (DCR is Net Operating Income divided by 

amortizing debt service) through the compliance and restricted use periods, as applicable.    

Operating Margin  
In addition to considering the DCR, the City will review the operating margin (surplus cash divided by total 

operating expenses and amortizing debt service). The operating margin must remain at an achievable and 

realistic amount.  



Goldsboro HOME-ARP NCS Underwriting & Subsidy Layering Guidelines                                                              10  

Other Funding Sources  
Prior to committing the Federal assistance, all other funding sources necessary for a project must be 

identified, committed in writing, and consistent with both the City’s underwriting requirements and the 

affordability restrictions of the Federal assistance. In general, developers must make all reasonable efforts 

to maximize the availability of other funding sources, including conventional mortgage debt and tax credit 

equity (as applicable), within commercially available and reasonable terms.  

Additionally, restrictions or limitations imposed by other funding sources cannot (i) conflict with any 

applicable Federal assistance requirements; and (ii) at the discretion of the City, create undue risk to the 

City.  

Senior Mortgage Debt    
Any amortizing mortgage debt that will be senior to the City’s Federal assistance loan must:  

• Provide fixed-rate financing;  

 

• Unless otherwise approved by the City, have a term equal to or in excess of the Federal assistance 

compliance or restricted use period. The compliance and restricted use periods will generally be 

15 years beyond the date of project completion for HOME-ARP projects. Insomuch as possible, 

the first mortgage should have the longest amortization period available but cannot balloon prior 

to the expiration of the compliance and restricted us periods; and  

 

• As applicable, allow the City’s Federal assistance covenant running with the land (i.e., the deed 

restrictions imposing the Federal assistance affordability requirements) to be recorded senior to 

all other financing documents such that the Federal assistance covenant is not extinguished in the 

case of foreclosure by a senior lender.  

Deferred Developer Fee  
If projects include deferred developer fees as a financing source, the City will generally require that:  

• Projections of surplus cash available (after any cash-flow contingent payment due the City) be 

sufficient to repay the deferred fee within 15 years, and the City will assume that all surplus cash 

distributions will be credited against the developer fee;  

 

• Following the initial application to the City, the level of deferred developer fee will remain fixed 

(in nominal dollar terms) in the event City underwriting identifies cost reductions, increases in 

other funding sources, or other changes that result in a net reduction of the gap to be filled with 

Federal assistance; and  

 

• Any net savings (or increased funding sources) at project completion and cost certification will be 

used in equal parts to reduce the deferred developer fee and the City’s permanent Federal 

assistance loan. In the event savings are sufficient to eliminate the deferred fee in this manner, 

any remaining net savings will be used to further reduce the City’s Federal assistance loan, or in 

the sole discretion of the City, to increase the operating reserve or preservation reserve.  

Supportive Services  
HOME-ARP funds may be used to provide a broad range of supportive services to qualifying individuals or 

families in combination with other HOME-ARP activities. Supportive services include: (a) services listed in 

section 401(29) of the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act (42 U.S.C. 11360(29); (b) homelessness 

prevention services; and (c) housing counseling services. If the proposed project’s RFP includes a request 

of funding for supportive services, the City underwriting and subsidy layering review will include 



Goldsboro HOME-ARP NCS Underwriting & Subsidy Layering Guidelines                                                              11  

confirmation the supportive services are reasonable, are for use by qualifying populations at the proposed 

project and are not paid by another source.  

Nonprofit Operating Cost Assistance  
The City may award operating expense assistance to a nonprofit organization if it reasonably expects to 

provide HOME-ARP funds to the organization for any of the eligible HOME-ARP activities within twenty-

four (24) months of the award. If the proposed project’s RFP includes a request of funding for nonprofit 

operating cost assistance, the City’s underwriting and subsidy layering review will include confirmation the 

operating cost assistance is reasonable, are for use by a nonprofit organization, and are not paid by another 

source.  

Exceptions and Interpretation  
The City has developed these guidelines for several reasons. Not only are they required by HUD as part of 

the City’s role in awarding Federal assistance, but more generally they are intended to provide clarity to 

applicants on what the City expects and transparency about the rules of the road. However, the City 

recognizes that it cannot pre-emptively identify every possible special circumstance that may warrant an 

exception to its general requirements, nor can it identify every possible loophole whereby a creative 

presentation of costs or other projections might subvert the general need to balancing of viability and 

reasonable returns risk to the City and public benefit.  

Consequently, the City reserves the right to waive specific underwriting criteria for specific projects when, 

in its judgment, the purposes of the Federal assistance can be better achieved without taking on undue 

risk. When waiving any given requirement, the City may impose additional special conditions or business 

terms that are not otherwise typically applied to all projects.    

For administrative ease, the City may also align its underwriting standards with those required by other 

public funders involved in a given transaction, particularly if those standards are more restrictive or 

conservative than the City’s. However, the City retains the right, in its sole discretion, to decide whether 

to accept alternative standards.  

The City also reserves the right to reject any element of a transaction that, despite not being specifically 

prohibited, was not anticipated by these guidelines or such an element or business term otherwise creates 

unacceptable risks, excessive returns to the owner/developer, or otherwise undermines the public 

purposes of the Federal assistance.  

Insomuch as is reasonable, the City will update and clarify these guidelines over time to account for 

exceptions, waivers, or additional restrictions it imposes.  

  





 

 

 

 

  

 

  

HOME-ARP 

 

 

 

Supportive Services 

 

Program Guidelines 

 

 

 

2023 



 

 

Table of Contents  

  

THESE GUIDELINES SET FORTH THE REQUIREMENTS FOR THE   

CITY’S AWARD OF HOME-ARP FUNDS FOR SUPPORTIVE SERVICES  

  

1. SUMMARY 1 

2. APPLICATION AND EVALUATION PROCEDURE 1 

  A.  FUNDING AVAILABILITY 1 

  B.  SUBMISSION OF MATERIALS 2 

3. PROJECT FUNDING REQUIREMENTS  2 

  A.  ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA 2 

  B.  ELIGIBLE COSTS 3 

4. TERMINATION OF ASSISTANCE TO PROGRAM PARTICIPANTS  13 

5. COMMITMENT  13 

6. POLICIES AND PROCEDURES  14 

7. PROJECT COMPLETION  15 

         

 

  

  

  



 

Page | 1   

  

1. Summary  

  

The City of Goldsboro (the City) supports the funding of supportive services for Qualified 

Populations (QPs) with its funding allocation from the U. S. Department of Housing and Urban 

Development’s (HUD) HOME Investment Partnerships Program (HOME) for eligible HOME 

American Rescue Plan (HOME-ARP) activities. HOME was created under Title II of the Cranston-

Gonzalez National Affordable Housing Act of 1990 with implementing regulations at 24 CFR Part 

92.  Requirements for HOME-ARP funds appropriated under section 3205 of the American Rescue 

Plan Act of 2021, which will provide homelessness assistance and supportive services, are located 

at HUD Notice CPD 21-10 (Notice).  

  

Pursuant to the HOME-ARP Allocation Plan, $308,690 is earmarked for supportive services ,which 

can be offered in conjunction with the rehabilitation, acquisition, and/or new construction of 

HOME-ARP funded non-congregate shelter unit projects in Goldsboro.  

  

Pursuant to the HOME-ARP Allocation Plan, the City anticipates responses to the application will 

result in HOME-ARP funds being committed to eligible activities. However, if the HOME-ARP funds 

are not fully committed following the application cycle, any remaining funds may be re-allocated 

to the Acquisition and Development of Non-Congregate Shelters.  

  

Throughout the Supportive Services Program Guidelines (Guidelines), the following 

phrases/words are used interchangeably: program participant and tenant; proposed project and 

project; and project owner and owner.  

  

This document sets forth the requirements for the City’s awards of HOME-ARP funds for 

supportive services. 

  

2. Application and Evaluation Procedure  

  

The City will issue Requests for Proposals (RFP) for supportive services which will serve HOME-

ARP Qualifying Populations. The RFPs will outline specific application deadlines, any funding focus 

(e.g., by project type, population served, etc.), and other special considerations.  

 

A.  Funding Availability  

  

Upon submission of an RFP for HOME-ARP funds, City staff will conduct a review and analysis of 

the project supportive services provider(s) as presented in the proposal. Proposals will be scored 

based on criteria in the RFP. Regardless of strict numerical ranking, the scoring does not operate 

to vest in an applicant or project any right to a reservation or commitment of HOME-ARP funds. 

The City will, in all instances, commit HOME-ARP funds consistent with sound and reasonable 

judgment, prudent business practices, and the exercise of its inherent discretion.  

  



 

Page | 2   

  

 

3. Project Funding Requirements  

  

A.  Eligibility Criteria  

  

Eligible Costs of Supportive Services of Qualifying Individuals and Families:  

  

HOME-ARP funds may be used to pay eligible costs associated with the HOME-ARP supportive 

services activity in accordance with the requirements of the Notice. Eligible costs that may be 

paid using HOME-ARP funds are limited to only those identified in Notice and listed below. Any 

ineligible costs paid using HOME-ARP funds must be repaid.  

  

HOME-ARP funds for supportive services will be used for costs that are necessary to assist the 

QPs, prevent homelessness, or to enable qualifying households to obtain and maintain housing. 

The list of eligible costs associated with McKinney-Vento Supportive Services and Homelessness 

Prevention Services is in the Notice and listed below.  

  

All qualifying households are eligible to receive supportive services under this activity; the owner 

must submit appropriate documentation evidencing eligible costs for an individual or family in a 

Qualifying Population as McKinney-Vento supportive services, homelessness prevention services, 

or Housing Counseling.  

  

For example, if a person is homeless, then the person is eligible to be provided the supportive 

services as McKinney-Vento supportive services for the costs allowable in the Notice and listed 

below. If a person is housed and the supportive services are intended to help the program 

participant regain stability in the program participant’s current permanent housing or move into 

other permanent housing to achieve stability in that housing, then the person is eligible for 

homelessness prevention services for the costs allowable in the Notice and listed below. Housing 

Counseling services may be provided regardless of whether a person is homeless or currently 

housed.  

  

The project owner must submit documentation regarding the types of supportive services 

(McKinney-Vento supportive services, homelessness prevention services, Housing Counseling 

services or some combination of the three) they wish to offer program participants. Only the 

supportive services that are authorized in the HOME-ARP written agreement with the project 

owner/supportive service provider may be provided to program participants by that project 

owner/supportive service provider and only program participants who are eligible for those 

supportive services may be served. As such, supportive services providers must demonstrate 

through their documentation that the individuals served were eligible to receive the supportive 

services that were authorized under the HOME-ARP written agreement for those costs to be 

eligible.  

  



 

Page | 3   

  

The HOME-ARP written agreement may set a maximum dollar amount that a program participant 

may receive for each type of service described in the Notice and listed below and may also set a 

maximum period for which a program participant may receive any of the types of assistance or 

services.  

  

Oversight of Eligible Costs: All supportive service costs paid for by HOME-ARP must comply with 

the requirements of these Guidelines and the Notice, including requirements in 2 CFR part 200, 

subpart E, Cost Principles that require costs to be necessary and reasonable. If a qualifying 

household is already receiving the same eligible supportive service or has been approved to 

receive the same service through another program or provider, the program participant does not 

have a need for the HOME-ARP service and the costs related to the service do not comply with 

the Cost Principles. The project owner/supportive services provider is responsible for establishing 

requirements that allow a program participant to receive only the HOME-ARP services needed so 

there is no duplication of services or assistance in the use of HOME-ARP funds for supportive 

services. This may include the use of systems such as Homeless Management Information 

Systems in coordination with local supportive service providers, CoCs, and other nonprofit 

organizations.   

  

Eligible Costs:   

  

Eligible Costs for McKinney Vento Supportive Services and Homelessness Prevention Services: 

Eligible costs for supportive services under either of these two categories include costs associated 

with the following services:   

  

(A) Childcare: The costs of childcare for program participants, including providing meals and 

snacks, and comprehensive and coordinated developmental activities, are eligible. The 

childcare center must be licensed by the jurisdiction in which it operates for its costs to be 

eligible. The following conditions also apply:   

  

• Children must be under the age of 13 unless the children have a disability.   

• Children with a disability must be under the age of 18.   

  

(B) Education services: The costs of improving knowledge and basic educational skills are eligible 

costs including:   

  

• Instruction or training in consumer education, health education, substance abuse 

prevention, literacy, English as a Second Language, and General Educational Development 

(GED).   

• Screening, assessment, and testing; individual or group instruction; tutoring; provision of 

books, supplies, and instructional material; counseling; and referral to community 

resources.   

  



 

Page | 4   

  

(C) Employment assistance and job training: The costs of establishing and/or operating 

employment assistance and job training programs are eligible, including classroom, online 

and/or computer instruction, on-the-job instruction, services that assist individuals in 

securing employment, acquiring learning skills, and/or increasing earning potential. The cost 

of providing reasonable stipends to program participants in employment assistance and job 

training programs is also an eligible cost.   

  

• Learning skills include those skills that can be used to secure and retain a job, including 

the acquisition of vocational licenses and/or certificates.   

• Services that assist individuals in securing employment consist of: 

      o Employment screening, assessment, or testing;  

o Structured job skills and job-seeking skills;  

o Special training and tutoring, including literacy training and pre-vocational 

training;  

  o Books and instructional material;  

      o Counseling or job coaching; and 

         o Referral to community resources.  

  

(D) Food: The cost of providing meals or groceries to program participants is eligible.   

  

(E) Housing search and counseling services: Costs of assisting eligible program participants to 

locate, obtain, and retain suitable housing are eligible. Services are:  

  

• Development of an action plan for locating housing;  

• Housing search;  

• Tenant counseling;  

• Securing utilities;  

• Making moving arrangements;  

• Outreach to and negotiation with owners;  

• Assistance submitting rental applications and understanding leases;  

• Assistance obtaining utilities;  

• Mediation with property owners and landlords on behalf of eligible program participants; 

• Credit counseling, accessing a free personal credit report, and resolving personal credit 

issues; 

• Payment of rental application fees; and 

• Other Housing Counseling costs, as defined in 24 CFR 5.100, funded with, or provided in 

connection with grant funds must be carried out in accordance with 24 CFR 5.111. 

 

Please Note: When housing services are provided to eligible persons that are incidental to a larger 

set of holistic case management services, these services do not meet the definition of Housing 

Counseling, as defined in 24 CFR 5.100, and therefore are not required to be carried out in 

accordance with the certification requirements of 24 CFR 5.111 



 

Page | 5   

  

 

(F) Legal services: Eligible costs are the fees charged by licensed attorneys and by person(s) 

under the supervision of licensed attorneys, for advice and representation in matters that 

interfere with a qualifying individual or family’s ability to obtain and retain housing. 

 

• Eligible subject matters are child support; guardianship; paternity; emancipation; legal 

separation; orders of protection and other legal remedies for victims of domestic violence, 

dating violence, sexual assault, human trafficking, and stalking; appeal of veterans and 

public benefit claim denials; landlord-tenant disputes; and the resolution of outstanding 

criminal warrants; landlord/tenant matters, provided that the services must be necessary 

to resolve a legal problem that prohibits the program participant from obtaining 

permanent housing or will likely result in the program participant losing the permanent 

housing in which the program participant currently resides.   

• Legal services for immigration and citizenship matters and for issues related to mortgages 

and homeownership are ineligible. Retainer fee arrangements and contingency fee 

arrangements are prohibited.   

• Services may include client intake, receiving and preparing cases for trial, provision of legal 

advice, representation at hearings, and counseling.   

• Fees based on the actual service performed (i.e., fee for service) are also eligible, but only 

if the cost is less than the cost of hourly fees. Filing fees and other necessary court costs 

are also eligible.



 

Page | 6   

  

 

(G) Life skills training: The costs of teaching critical life management skills that may never have 

been learned or have been lost during periods of physical or mental illness, domestic violence, 

dating violence, sexual assault, stalking, human trafficking, substance abuse, and 

homelessness are eligible. These services must be necessary to assist the program participant 

to function independently in the community. Life skills training includes:  

  

• The budgeting of resources and money management, household management, conflict 

management, shopping for food and other needed items, nutrition, the use of public 

transportation, and parent training.   

  

(H) Mental health services: Eligible costs are the direct outpatient treatment of mental health 

conditions that are provided by licensed professionals.   

  

• Mental health services are the application of therapeutic processes to personal, family, 

situational, or occupational problems to bring about positive resolution of the problem or 

improved individual or family functioning or circumstances. Problem areas may include 

family and marital relationships, parent-child problems, or symptom management.   

 

• Services are crisis interventions; counseling; individual, family, or group therapy sessions; 

the prescription of psychotropic medications or explanations about the use and 

management of medications; and combinations of therapeutic approaches to address 

multiple problems.   

  

(I) Outpatient health services: Eligible costs are the direct outpatient treatment of medical 

conditions when provided by licensed medical professionals including:   

 

• Providing an analysis or assessment of a program participant’s health problems and the 

development of a treatment plan;  

• Assisting program participants to understand their health needs;  

• Providing directly or assisting program participants to obtain and utilize appropriate 

medical treatment;  

• Preventive medical care and health maintenance services, including in-home health 

services and emergency medical services;  

• Provision of appropriate medication;  

• Providing follow-up services; and  

• Preventive and non-cosmetic dental care.  

  

 



 

Page | 7   

  

(J) Outreach services: The costs of activities to engage qualified populations for the purpose of 

providing immediate support and intervention, as well as identifying potential program 

participants, are eligible.   

  

• Eligible costs include the outreach worker's transportation costs and a cell phone to be 

used by the individual performing the outreach.   

 

• Costs associated with the following services are eligible: initial assessment; crisis 

counseling; addressing urgent physical needs, such as providing meals, blankets, clothes, 

or toiletries; actively connecting and providing people with information and referrals to 

homeless mainstream programs; and publicizing the availability of the housing and/or 

services provided within Goldsboro.   

  

(K) Substance abuse treatment services: Eligible substance abuse treatment services are 

designed to prevent, reduce, eliminate, or deter relapse of substance abuse or addictive 

behaviors and are provided by licensed or certified professionals. The costs include:   

 

• Program participant intake and assessment;  

• Outpatient treatment;  

• Group and individual counseling;  

• Drug testing;  

• Inpatient detoxification and other inpatient drug or alcohol treatment are ineligible.  

  

(L) Transportation: Eligible costs are:   

  

• The costs of program participant's travel on public transportation or in a vehicle provided 

by the project owner/supportive service provider to and from medical care, employment, 

childcare, or other services eligible under these Guidelines and the Notice;  

• Mileage allowance for service workers to visit program participants and to carry out 

housing inspections;  

• The cost of purchasing or leasing a vehicle in which staff transports program participants 

and/or staff serving program participants;  

• The cost of gas, insurance, taxes, and maintenance for the vehicle;  

• The costs of the project owner’s/supportive service provider’s staff to accompany or assist 

program participants to utilize public transportation; and  

• If public transportation options are not sufficient within the area, a one-time payment on 

behalf of a program participant needing car repairs or maintenance required to operate a 

personal vehicle is permissible, subject to the following:  

  

o Payments for car repairs or maintenance on behalf of the program participant may 

not exceed 10 percent of the Blue Book value of the vehicle (Blue Book refers to 



 

Page | 8   

  

the guidebook that compiles and quotes prices for new and used automobiles and 

other vehicles of all makes, models, and types);  

o Payments for car repairs or maintenance must be paid directly to the third party 

that repairs or maintains the car; and  

o Program participants may be required to share in the cost of car repairs or 

maintenance as a condition of receiving assistance with car repairs or 

maintenance.  

  

• If public transportation options for the project are insufficient and the project 

owner/supportive services provider foresees having a project tenant population who may 

need the one-time payment for car repairs or maintenance, which would be required to 

operate a personal vehicle, then the project owner/supportive services provider must 

submit to the City policies and procedures surrounding payments for the cost of gas, 

insurance, taxes, the one-time payment for car repairs or maintenance described above, 

and maintenance for vehicles of program participants. Such costs must be limited to 

program participants with the inability to pay for such costs and who, without such 

assistance, would not be able to participate in eligible services under the Notice and listed 

in these Guidelines. The City will review said policies and procedures for acceptability.  

 

(M) Case management: The costs of assessing, arranging, coordinating, and monitoring the 

 delivery of individualized services to meet the needs of the program participant(s) are 

 eligible costs. Owners/Providers providing these supportive services must have written 

 standards for providing the assistance and will submit said written  standards to the City 

       for review and acceptability. Eligible costs are those associated with the following services 

       and activities:  

 

• Conducting the initial evaluation, including verifying and documenting eligibility, for 

individuals and families applying for supportive services;  

• Counseling;  

• Developing, securing, and coordinating services;  

• Using a centralized or coordinated assessment system that complies with the 

requirements of the Preferences Among Qualifying Populations, Referral Methods, 

and Subpopulations section (Section IV.C) of the Notice;  

• Obtaining federal, State, and local benefits;  

• Monitoring and evaluating program participant progress;  

• Providing information and referrals to other providers;  

• Providing ongoing risk assessment and safety planning with victims of domestic 

violence, dating violence, sexual assault, stalking, and human trafficking;  

• Developing an individualized housing and service plan, including planning a path to 

permanent housing stability; and  



 

Page | 9   

  

• Conducting re-evaluations of the program participant's eligibility and the types and 

amounts of assistance the program participant needs.  

  

(N) Mediation: HOME-ARP funds may pay for mediation between the program participant and 

the project owner/supportive services provider or person(s) with whom the program 

participant is living, provided that the mediation is necessary to prevent the program 

participant from losing permanent housing in which the program participant currently resides.   

  

(O) Credit repair: HOME-ARP funds may pay for credit counseling and other services necessary to 

assist program participants with critical skills related to household budgeting, managing 

money, accessing a free personal credit report, and resolving personal credit problems. This 

assistance does not include the payment or modification of a debt.   

  

(P) Landlord/Tenant Liaison: Costs of liaison services between property managers/owners and 

program participants are eligible HOME-ARP costs and may include:   

  

• Landlord outreach;  

• Physical inspections and rent reasonable studies as needed to secure units;  

• Rental application fees and security deposits for clients, in accordance with the financial 

assistance costs requirements in (R);  

• Mediation services for housing issues that may arise between owner, property manager, 

or other residents and clients; 

• Coordination or assistance with the provision of other HOME-ARP eligible services to assist 

clients to maintain permanent housing. 

 

(Q) Services for special populations: HOME-ARP funds may be used to provide services for special 

populations, such as victim services, so long as the costs of providing these services are 

eligible under this section. The term “victim services” can be defined as services that assist 

program participants who are victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, 

stalking, or human trafficking including services offered by rape crisis centers and domestic 

violence shelters, and other organizations with a documented history of effective work 

concerning domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, stalking, or human trafficking.   

  

(R) Financial assistance costs: HOME-ARP funds may be used to pay housing owners, utility 

companies, and other third parties for the following costs, as applicable:   

  

• Rental application fees: Rental housing application fee that is charged by the owner to all 

applicants.  

• Security deposits: A security deposit that is equal to no more than 2 months’ rent. This 

assistance is separate and distinct from the provision of financial assistance for First and 

Last Month’s rent provided under this section and cannot be used to duplicate those costs. 



 

Page | 10   

  

  

• Utility deposits: HOME-ARP funds may pay for a standard utility deposit or initiation fee 

required by the utility company or owner (if owner-paid utilities are provided) for all 

program participants for the following utilities:  

 

o Gas  

o Electric  

o Water  

o Sewer  

  

• Utility payments: HOME-ARP funds may pay for up to 24 months of utility payments per 

program participant, per service, including up to 6 months of utility payments in arrears, 

per service. A partial payment of a utility bill counts as one month. This assistance may 

only be provided if the program participant or a member of the same household has an 

account in his or her name with a utility company or proof of responsibility to make utility 

payments. Eligible utility services are gas, electric, water, and sewer. No program 

participant shall receive more than 24 months of utility assistance within any 3-year 

period.  

 

• Moving costs: HOME-ARP funds may pay for moving costs, such as truck rental or hiring a 

moving company. This assistance may include payment of temporary storage fees for up 

to 3 months, provided that the fees are accrued after the date the program participant 

begins receiving assistance under this section of the Notice and before the program 

participant moves into permanent housing. Payment of temporary storage fees in arrears 

is not eligible.  

 

• First and Last month's rent: If necessary to obtain housing for a program participant, 

HOME-ARP funds may be used to make a pre-payment of the first and last month's rent 

under a new lease to the owner at the time the owner is paid the security deposit for the 

program participant’s tenancy in the housing. This assistance must not exceed two 

month's rent and must be tracked for the purposes of determining the total short- and 

medium-term financial assistance for rent that the program participant may receive. This 

assistance is separate and distinct from financial assistance for Security Deposits provided 

under this section and cannot be used to duplicate those costs.   

 

• Payment of rental arrears: HOME-ARP funds may be used for a one-time payment for up 

to 6 months of rent in arrears, including any late fees or charges on those arrears, if 

necessary for the household to maintain their existing housing or, for those without 

housing, if necessary to remove a demonstrated barrier to obtaining housing.   

  



 

Page | 11   

  

(S) Short-term and medium-term financial assistance for rent: Subject to the following conditions, 

a program participant may be provided with short-term or medium-term financial assistance 

for rent, provided that the total financial assistance provided, including any pre-payment of 

first and last month’s rent as described above, does not exceed 24 months of rental payments 

over any 3year period.  

  

• Short-term equates to up to 3 months. 

  

• Medium-term equates to more than 3 months but not more than 24 months.  

 

• Rental payments will only be made to an owner whom the City has entered into a financial 

assistance agreement with for rental payment. The financial assistance agreement must 

set forth the terms under which rental payments will be provided, including the 

requirements that apply under the Notice. The financial assistance agreement must 

provide that, during the term of the agreement, the owner must give the City a copy of 

any notice to the program participant to vacate the housing unit or any complaint used 

under State or local law to commence an eviction action against the program participant. 

The owner must serve written notice upon the program participant at least 30 days before 

termination of tenancy specifying the grounds for the action. Each financial assistance 

agreement that is executed or renewed must comply with the requirements in 24 CFR 

92.359.  

 

• The City must make timely payments to each owner in accordance with the financial 

assistance agreement. The financial assistance agreement must contain the same 

payment due date, grace period, and late payment penalty requirements as the program 

participant's lease. The City is solely responsible for paying late payment penalties that it 

incurs with non-HOME-ARP funds.  

 

o Rental payments cannot be provided unless the rent does not exceed the Fair 

Market Rent established by HUD, as provided under 24 CFR part 888, and complies 

with HUD's standard of rent reasonableness, as established under 24 CFR 982.507.  

 

o Each program participant receiving financial assistance for rental payments must 

have a legally binding, written lease for the rental unit, unless the assistance is 

solely for rental arrears. The lease must be between the owner and the program 

participant. Where the financial assistance is solely for rental arrears, an oral 

agreement may be accepted in place of a written lease, if the agreement gives the 

program participant an enforceable leasehold interest under state law and the 

agreement and rent owed are sufficiently documented by the owner's financial 

records, rent ledgers, or canceled checks. New leases must have an initial term of 



 

Page | 12   

  

1 year unless a shorter period is agreed upon by the program participant and 

owner. The lease requirements in 24 CFR 92.359 apply to this financial assistance.  

 

o The City will establish requirements to prevent the provision of short- or medium-

term financial assistance for rent for the same period for which a program 

participant is receiving rental assistance or living in housing provided with ongoing 

assistance (such as project-based rental assistance or operating subsidies).  

 

o If a program participant receiving financial assistance for short- or medium-term 

rental payments under this section meets the conditions for an emergency transfer 

under 24 CFR 5.2005(e), HOME-ARP funds may be used to pay amounts owed for 

breaking a lease to effectuate an emergency transfer. These costs are not subject 

to the 24-month limit on rental payments.  

 

Ineligible costs - Financial assistance cannot be provided to a program participant who is receiving 

the same type of assistance through other public sources. Financial assistance also cannot be 

provided to a program participant who has been provided with replacement housing payments 

under the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, as 

amended (42 USC 4601 et seq.) and its implementing regulations at 49 CFR part 24, or Section 

104(d) of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 (42 USC 5304(d) and its 

implementing regulations at 24 CFR part 42, during the period of time covered by the 

replacement housing payments.  

 

ii. Eligible Costs Associated with Housing Counseling under 24 CFR 5.100 and 5.111: Costs 

associated with housing counseling services as defined at 24 CFR 5.100 and 5.111 are eligible 

under HOME-ARP. As homeowner assistance and related services are not eligible HOME-ARP 

activities, costs for the provision of services related to mortgages and homeownership to existing 

homeowners are also not eligible under HOME-ARP. If a program participant is a candidate for 

homeownership, costs associated with pre-purchase homebuying counseling, education and 

outreach are eligible under HOME-ARP. Eligible costs are those costs associated with the services 

listed in 24 CFR part 214 and include, but are not limited to:  

  

(A) Staff salaries and overhead costs of HUD-certified housing counseling agencies related to 

directly providing eligible housing counseling services to HOME-ARP program participants; 

(B) Development of a housing counseling workplan;   

(C) Marketing and outreach;   

(D) Intake;   

(E) Financial and housing affordability analysis;   

(F) Action plans that outline what the housing counseling agency and the client will do to 

meet the client's housing goals and that address the client's housing problem(s); and 

(G) Follow-up communication with program participants. 



 

Page | 13   

  

4. Termination of assistance to program participants:  

 

a. Termination of assistance: Assistance may be terminated to a program participant who 

violates program requirements or conditions of services or no longer needs the services 

as determined by the project owner, supportive services provider, and/or the City. 

Termination under this section does not bar the project owner, service provider, and/or 

the City from providing further assistance at a later date to the same individual or family 

under the Notice.   

 

b. Due process: Project owners/service providers must establish policies and procedures 

for termination of assistance to program participants. The project owner/service 

provider will submit said policies and procedures to the City for review and acceptability. 

In terminating assistance to a program participant, the project owner/service provider 

must provide a formal process that recognizes the rights of individuals receiving 

assistance under the due process of law. This process, at a minimum, must consist of: 

 

i. Providing the program participant with a written copy of the program rules and 

the termination process before the participant begins to receive assistance; 

 

ii. Written notice to the program participant containing a clear statement of the 

reasons for termination; 

 

iii. A review of the decision, in which the program participant is given the 

opportunity to present written or oral objections before a person other than the 

person (or a subordinate of that person) who made or approved the termination 

decision; and 

 

iv. Prompt written notice of the final decision to the program participant.   

  

During this process, the project owner must provide effective communication and accessibility 

for individuals with disabilities, including the provision of reasonable accommodations. Similarly, 

the project owner/supportive services provider must provide meaningful access to persons with 

limited English proficiency.  

  

5. Commitment:   

  

For supportive services, commitment means that before disbursing any HOME-ARP funds to any 

entity, the City will execute a legally binding written agreement that complies with HOME-ARP 

requirements with the project owner/service provider providing the supportive service (that 

includes the date of the signature of each person signing the agreement).   

 



 

Page | 14   

  

6. Policies and Procedures:  

  

Project owners/Supportive Services providers must establish the following policies and 

procedures in compliance with the Notice. The project owner will submit said policies and 

procedures to the City for review and acceptability.  

  

a. Participant selection procedures in accordance with Section IV.C.2 of the Notice (Referral 

Methods for Projects or Activities);   

 

b. Eligibility of program participants in other HOME-ARP activities for supportive services under 

Section VI.D.4.c.i of the Notice (Eligible Costs for McKinney Vento Supportive Services and 

Homelessness Prevention Services), including (and if applicable) the length of time that 

program participants may be served by HOME-ARP rental housing before they will no longer 

be eligible as a qualifying population;   

c. If the project owner/service provider chooses to set maximum amounts and/or maximum 

periods for assistance or services, the maximum dollar amount that a program participant may 

receive for each type of service described in Section VI.D.4.c.i of the Notice (Eligible Costs for 

McKinney Vento Supportive Services and Homelessness Prevention Services) and/or maximum 

periods for which a program participant may receive any of the types of assistance or services 

under this section;   

d. Documentation of eligible costs;   

e. Requirements that allow a program participant to receive only the HOME-ARP services needed 

so there is no duplication of services or assistance in the use of HOME-ARP funds for supportive 

services;   

f. Payments for the cost of gas, insurance, taxes, the one-time payment for car repairs or 

maintenance described above, and maintenance for vehicles of program participants;   

g. Financial assistance for short-term and medium-term rental payments under the Notice, 

including requirements to prevent a duplication of rental or financial assistance provided to a 

program participant;   

h. Housing stability case management; and   

i. Termination of assistance to program participants.   

  

7. Project Completion: Project completion for a HOME-ARP Supportive Services project means 

the final drawdown has been disbursed for the project.   



HOME-ARP Supportive Services Page 1 of 30 

HOME-ARP SUPPORTIVE SERVICES 
APPLICATION INSTRUCTIONS 

1. Complete all pages of the application.

 All Non-profit Applicants must submit all items identified on Part X – Non-profit Checklist.

 All Applicants must submit a copy of their HOME-ARP Supportive Services Written Standards. Please
refer to Program Description for Written Standards Requirements. 

2. Answer all questions. If not applicable to your program, please mark N/A. If more space is needed,
please provide a full answer in an attachment.

3. Submit ONE ORIGINAL application and supporting information.

4. The application must be signed by the Executive Director or Board Chairperson of the Applicant, as
appropriate.

5. The application window will open at 9:00 a.m. EST, on Thursday, October 19, 2023 and must be
received by 4:00 p.m. EST, on Monday, November 20, 2023. The City will not consider applications
received past the deadline. Submit one (1) hard copy application to the City of Goldsboro, 200 N.
Center Street, Goldsboro, NC 27530 with Attn: Community Relations & Development (in person) or by
mail at PO Drawer A, Goldsboro, NC 27533.

6. Please submit a complete application.

Please note: The City will not provide an opportunity to correct application items or extend the 
application deadline. 

                          City of Goldsboro



HOME-ARP Supportive Services Page 2 of 30 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
HOME-ARP SUPPORTIVE SERVICES APPLICATION 

1. APPLICANT INFORMATION 

Organization Legal Name: 

Mailing Address: 

City: Zip: 

County: 

Applicant’s Email Address: Phone: 

Federal Tax ID#: SAM.gov UEI Number: 

Federal Legislative District – House: 

State Legislative District – House: Senate: 

Grantee Fiscal Year:  Federal  State  Other (specify): 

2. APPLICANT SIGNATORY 

Name: 

Title: 

Mailing Address: 

City: State: Zip: 

Email Address: Phone: 

3. CONTACT PERSON FOR THE APPLICATION 

Name: 

Title: 

Phone: 

Email: 

4. TARGET GROUP (Check all that apply) 

 Chronically Homeless  Domestic Violence 

 Homeless Youth (18-24)  Elderly (62+) 

 Persons with HIV/AIDS  Individuals with Disabilities 

 Homeless Veterans  Homeless Adults 

 Homeless Families with Children  Other: 

PART I: GENERAL APPLICANT INFORMATION 

                                       City of Goldsboro



HOME-ARP Supportive Services Page 3 of 30 

5. COUNTY OR COUNTIES TO BE SERVED: 

6. FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATION?  Yes  No 

7. PRIOR CDBG/HOME FUNDING?  Yes  No 

If yes, identify most recent: Year: Amount: 

8. TOTAL HOME-ARP SUPPORTIVE SERVICES FUNDS REQUESTED
 

McKinney Vento Supportive Services 

Homelessness Prevention Supportive Services 

Housing Counseling 

TOTAL PROGRAM COST: 

9. ALL APPLICANTS MUST INCLUDE:

 Most recent audit or audited financial statement

 HOME-ARP Written Standards (See Program Description of Written Standard Requirements)

10. NON-PROFIT APPLICATIONS MUST ALSO INCLUDE:

 Part X – Non-profit Checklist with all supporting documentation

11. CERTIFICATION BY SIGNATORY:
To the best of my knowledge, I certify that the information in this application is true and correct and that
the document has been duly authorized by the governing body of the applicant. I will comply with the
program rules and regulations if assistance is approved. I also certify that I am aware that providing false
information on this application can subject the individual signing such application to criminal sanction up
to and including a Class B Felony.
By signing this application for funds, I am also certifying that all documents required to be submitted are
included in this application and that those documents reflect the most recent and complete documents
available and acknowledge that all applications will be evaluated based on the completeness of the
application and required supporting documents as of the application deadline.

Executive Director or Board Chairman: 

Signature:  

Typed Name: 

Title:  Date: 

                             City of Goldsboro



HOME-ARP Supportive Services Page 4 of 30 

 PART II: APPLICANT NARRATIVE 

1. Describe the geographic make-up of the service area of the applicant.

• Geographic area served (list all counties):

• Location of main and satellite offices:

• Check all geographic locations served by Applicant:

 Census Tract 15 (Designated Opportunity Zone) 
 Census Tract 18 (Designated Opportunity Zone) 
 Census Tract 19 (Designated Opportunity Zone) 
 Goldsboro city-wide (within city limits) 

2. Describe in detail the applicant’s mission, types of programs and services currently offered,
and how HOME-ARP Supportive Services programs will fit within that mission.

                            City of Goldsboro



HOME-ARP Supportive Services Page 5 of 30 

3. Describe the applicant's and Executive Director or other senior staff’s experience assisting
individuals and families experiencing homelessness or "at risk" of homelessness.

4. Will the applicant only serve a specific qualifying populations (elderly, disabled, veterans,
chronically homeless, DV victims)? Please explain.

                             City of Goldsboro



HOME-ARP Supportive Services Page 6 of 30 

5. Describe the applicant’s intake process to ensure individuals and families meet Qualified
Population requirements.

6. Are intakes standardized?  YES  NO

7. Do you currently have participation of not less than one homeless individual or formerly
homeless individual on the board of directors or other equivalent policy making entity?

                    City of Goldsboro



HOME-ARP Supportive Services Page 7 of 30 

8. Describe any changes to your current homelessness programs that have been made as a
result of participant feedback.

              City of Goldsboro



HOME-ARP Supportive Services Page 8 of 30 City of Goldsboro 

 PART III: AGENCY CAPACITY 

Describe the provider’s capacity to undertake and implement the proposed project or program. The 
discussion should include, but not be limited to, items such as staffing, organizational structure, 
coordination with other services, recent recognition or awards, and experience with other programs 
that serve the homeless or vulnerable populations. 

1. Describe how your agency makes known that use of facilities, assistance, and services are
available to all on a non-discriminatory basis, including steps to make individuals aware of the
availability of the facilities, services, and assistance, including those with disabilities. (Please
make sure to answer each part of the question)

2. Describe how your agency assists participants with limited English proficiency. How does the
agency make known its services to these communities within the service area?



HOME-ARP Supportive Services Page 9 of 30 City of Goldsboro 

3. Provide information about the board of directors and/or advisory council, such as the regularity
of meetings, list of subcommittees, and their involvement in the agency’s activities.

4. Does the Applicant utilize the local CoC’s HMIS?   YES  NO

5. If a victim service provider, does the Applicant utilize a comparable database?   YES  NO

6. If HMIS or comparable database is not utilized, how will the agency track reporting
requirements for households served?

      



HOME-ARP Supportive Services Page 10 of 30  City of Goldsboro 

7. Describe the Applicant’s process for ensuring project-level and agency-wide data quality.

8. Describe the Applicant’s method of receiving referrals. (CE, Hotline, Walk-in, Outreach, etc.)



HOME-ARP Supportive Services Page 11 of 30 City of Goldsboro 

 

 PART IV: FISCAL CAPACITY 

Describe the provider’s capacity to undertake proposed project funding. The discussion should 
include, but not be limited to, items such as program staffing, capacity to provide services, financial 
accountability, other homelessness grant awards, and experience with other programs that serve 
the homeless or vulnerable populations. 

1. How will you ensure all HOME-ARP-SS expenses are used for eligible activities and reported
accurately to the City?

2. Does the most recent financial audit show the applicant is in a cash positive financial
situation? If not, explain.



HOME-ARP Supportive Services Page 12 of 30 City of Goldsboro 

3. Is the agency in a financial position to be able to wait for a reimbursement that might take as
long as 30 days to receive? If not, please explain.

4. In the past, when awarded grant funding for homelessness programs has the applicant expended
the total funding awarded. If not, what percentage was expended?



HOME-ARP Supportive Services Page 13 of 30 City of Goldsboro 

 PART V: CoC Coordination 

1. Describe the CoC top priorities for addressing homelessness.

2. How does the applicant contribute to activities within their CoC? (committees, subcommittees,
Coordinated Entry/By-Name List meetings)



HOME-ARP Supportive Services Page 14 of 30 

3. Is the applicant requesting funding in HOME-ARP SS components (McKinney-Vento,
Homelessness Prevention, and Housing Counseling) that have been identified by the CoC as a
priority?

4. Did the applicant consult with the CoC while preparing the HOME-ARP SS Application and its
proposed activities?

5. Is the applicant a CoC Lead Agency?  YES  NO

 

                         City of Goldsboro



HOME-ARP Supportive Services Page 15 of 30 City of Goldsboro 

 PART IV: PROPOSED ACTIVITIES 

A. McKinney-Vento Supportive Services:

1. Describe the proposed McKinney-Vento assistance to be provided using HOME-ARP SS funds.

2. How does the applicant determine the duration and amount of financial assistance to be provided?

5. Choose applicable services to be undertaken with HOME-ARP SS McKinney-Vento Supportive
Services funding, then briefly describe the Service with an attachment:

 Childcare 
 Education Services 
 Employment Assistance and Job Training 
 Food 
 Housing Search and Counseling Services 
 Legal Services 



HOME-ARP Supportive Services Page 16 of 30 City of Goldsboro 

 Life Skills Training 
 Mental Health Services 
 Outpatient health Services 
 Substance Abuse Treatment Services 
 Transportation 
 Case Management 
 Mediation 
 Credit Repair 
 Landlord /Tenant Liaison 
 Services for Special Populations 
 Financial Assistance Costs 
 Short-term & Medium-term Rental Assistance 

6. Please list each staff member and their number of years’ experience providing homelessness
services that will be working directly with participants under the HOME-ARP SS program.

7. State the number of years the applicant has provided McKinney-Vento Supportive
Services.



HOME-ARP Supportive Services Page 17 of 30 City of Goldsboro 

8. How many households did the Applicant serve in the previous fiscal year? (please include
households served through all homelessness grants).

9. Of those households served last year, what percentage were still in stable housing 6 months
after services were provided?

10. What is the average number of days between Project Start and Housing Move‐In Date, if
applicable?



HOME-ARP Supportive Services Page 18 of 30 City of Goldsboro 

B. Homelessness Prevention Services:

1. Describe the proposed Homelessness Prevention assistance to be provided using HOME-ARP SS
funds.

2. How will the Applicant ensure that minimal habitability standards are met when using
HOMEARP-SS funding for rental assistance?



HOME-ARP Supportive Services Page 19 of 30 City of Goldsboro 

3. How does the applicant determine the duration and amount of financial assistance to be
provided?

4. Choose applicable services to be undertaken with HOME-ARP SS Homelessness Prevention
funding, then briefly describe the Service:

 Childcare 
 Education Services 
 Employment Assistance and Job Training 
 Food 
 Housing Search and Counseling Services 
 Legal Services 
 Life Skills Training 
 Mental Health Services 
 Outpatient health Services 
 Substance Abuse Treatment Services 
 Transportation 
 Case Management 
 Mediation 
 Credit Repair 
 Landlord /Tenant Liaison 
 Services for Special Populations 
 Financial Assistance Costs 
 Short-term & Medium-term Rental Assistance 



HOME-ARP Supportive Services Page 20 of 30 City of Goldsboro 

5. Please list each staff member and their number of years’ experience providing homelessness
prevention services that will be working directly with participants under HOME-ARP SS.

6. State the number of years the applicant has provided homelessness prevention services.

7. How many households did the Applicant serve in the previous fiscal year providing
homelessness prevention services?



HOME-ARP Supportive Services Page 21 of 30 City of Goldsboro 

8. Of those households served last year, what percentage were still in stable housing 6 months
after services were provided?

9. What is the average number of days between a project start date and successful exit date?



HOME-ARP Supportive Services Page 22 of 30 City of Goldsboro 

C. Housing Counseling Services:

1. Describe the proposed Housing Counseling Services to be provided using HOME-ARP SS funds, if
applicable.

2. Is your agency certified by HUD to provide housing counseling services? If not, what HUD
certified agency will you be contracting with, if applicable?



HOME-ARP Supportive Services Page 23 of 30 City of Goldsboro 

3. Do you currently have staff which have passed the required HUD Certification examination for
housing counseling, if applicable?

4. How will the Applicant ensure that housing counseling is offered only to individuals which meet
the HOME-ARP SS Qualifying Populations?

5. What efforts will be made to have follow-up communications with participants, when
possible, to ensure that the individual or family is progressing toward the housing goal
established in the plan, to modify or terminate housing counseling, and to learn and report
outcomes?



HOME-ARP Supportive Services Page 24 of 30 City of Goldsboro 

6. What safeguards are in place to keep records confidential?
City of Goldsboro 

7. Please list each staff member that will provide Housing Counseling Services and their number
of years’ experience providing homelessness prevention services.

8. State the number of years the applicant has provided Housing Counseling Services.

9. How many individuals did the Applicant or Contracting Agency provide housing counseling
services to in the previous fiscal year?



HOME-ARP Supportive Services Page 25 of 30 City of Goldsboro 

10. Of those individuals served last year, what percentage were still in stable housing 6 months
after housing counseling services were provided?

11. What is the average number of days between a project start date and successful exit date for
housing counseling services?



HOME-ARP Supportive Services Page 26 of 30 City of Goldsboro 

 PART V: HOME-ARP SUPPORTIVE SERVICES FISCAL INFORMATION 

Agency Name: 

PROJECT DELIVERY BUDGET 
These project delivery costs must be attributable to the identifiable objective of the service delivered, 

otherwise they are administrative costs of the subrecipient. 

ACTIVITY HOME-ARP FUNDS 

McKinney-Vento Supportive Services 

Travel/ Transportation 

Emergency Financial Assistance 

Supplies/Materials 
Other: 

Other: 

Other: 

Other: 

TOTAL: 

Homelessness Prevention Supportive Services 

Travel / Transportation 

Emergency Financial Assistance 

Supplies/Materials 

Other: 

Other: 

Other: 

Other: 

TOTAL: 

Housing Counseling 

Supplies/Materials 

Other: 



HOME-ARP Supportive Services Page 27 of 30 City of Goldsboro 

Other: 

Other: 

Other: 

TOTAL: 



HOME-ARP Supportive Services Page 28 of 30 City of Goldsboro 

 G. Applicant/Board Member and Corporate Disclosure Forms completed, signed by the 
organization's Executive Director and each Board Member and notarized. 

 H. Applicant/Board Member and Corporate Disclosure Form completed, signed by the 
Chairman of the Board or Executive Director on behalf of the organization and 
notarized. 

 PART X: CHECKLIST - HOME-ARP SUPPORTIVE SERVICES 

NON-PROFIT CHECKLIST (to be completed by non-profit applicants only) 

1. Legal Name of Applicant: 

2. IRS Tax Exempt Number: 

3. Documentation to be submitted with application:

 A. Documentation of an IRS designation under Section 501(c)(3) or 501(c)(4) of the
federal tax code. A 501(c)(3) non-profit organization may not submit an application until
they have received their designation from the IRS. A 501(c)(4) non-profit applicant must
provide documentation satisfactory to the City, in its sole discretion, that the nonprofit
has filed the necessary material with the IRS and received a response from the IRS
demonstrating 501(c)(4) status.

 B. Copy of Organizational Charter

 C. Copy of Organizational By-laws

 D. List of Board members, including: name, occupation, role on the Board, a description
of the member’s primary contribution to the Board, length of service to the Board, date
the term of service expires, home address, phone number, and email address.

 E. Business plan or strategic management plan that demonstrates the agency’s short
term and long-term goals, objectives, and plans to achieve them.

 F. The most recent financial audit or audited financial statements of the organization. If
the issuance date of the financial audit or audited financial statement is more than 12
months prior to the date of the application, a statement signed by the Executive Director
of Board Chairman must be provided indicating reasons for the delay in obtaining an
updated audit.



HOME-ARP Supportive Services Page 29 of 30 City of Goldsboro 

4. Documentation to be submitted with this form as attachments to Part X of the Application:

 A. If the nonprofit is organized and exists under the laws of North Carolina, a current 
Certificate of Existence from the North Carolina Secretary of State's office. The 
certificate must be purchased from the Secretary of State's office and must be dated 
no more than 30 days prior to the application submission date. 

 B. Attach the resolution by the Board of Directors authorizing the submission of this 
application. 

 C. Attach the minutes of the most recent Board meeting at which this application was 
discussed. 

 D. Documentation of operating funds from other sources, including how much annually and 
from what sources. 

 E. Explanation of any other programs operated by the organization, including the 
program(s) and its funding source(s). Do not include a description of the future 
activities proposed in this application for which funds are sought. 



HOME-ARP Supportive Services Page 30 of 30 City of Goldsboro 

 Part XI: Other Required Attachments 

Legal Name of Applicant: 

For All Applications: 

1. HOME-ARP SUPPORTIVE SERVICES Written Standards

 Attach a copy of the organization’s HOME-ARP-SS Written Standards in Part XI of this
application. 





RESOLUTION NO. 2023-  % 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING UPSET BID PROCESS

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro and County of Wayne jointly own certain real property at E. 
Spruce Street ( Pin #3509148035) and 706 E. Spruce Street ( Pin #3509148085); and

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute § 160A-269 permits the city to sell real property by upset
bid, after receipt of an offer for the property; and

WHEREAS, the City has received an offer to purchase the property described above, in the amount of
3,950.00 ( Three Thousand Nine Hundred Fifty Dollars and no/ 100) submitted by Terrance A. 

Bynum ( Offeror); and

WHEREAS, Offeror has paid the required five percent ( 5%) deposit on his/ her offer in the amount of

197. 50 ( One Hundred Ninety -Seven Dollars and 50/ 100); 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North
Carolina, that: 

1) The City Council declares this property as surplus. 
2) The City Council authorizes sale of the property described above through the upset bid procedure of

North Carolina General Statute § 160A- 269. 

3) The Finance Director shall cause a notice of the proposed sale to be published in a newspaper of

general circulation within its jurisdiction. The notice shall describe the property and the amount of the

offer, and shall state the terms under which the offer may be upset. 
4) The Planning Department shall notify the adjoining property owners by U. S. mail that the property is

being offered for sale under the upset bid procedure. 
5) Persons wishing to upset the offer that has been received shall submit a sealed bid with their offer to

the office of the Finance Director at 200 N. Center Street, Goldsboro, NC 27530 during normal

business hours within 10 days after the notice of sale is published. At the conclusion of the 10 -day

period, the Finance Director shall open the bids, if any, and the highest such bid will become the new
offer. If there is more than one bid in the highest amount, the first such bid received will become the

new offer. 

6) Upset offer and deposit shall be delivered in a sealed envelope. The written offer proposal must

include the name of the person or business making the offer, address of said property, and Wayne

County parcel identification number. The offer shall be signed by the individual or person with
signature authority if a business entity. The outside of the sealed envelope should have the address of

the property, the words " Upset Bid" and include the address of the Property. 
7) The City of Goldsboro reserves the right to reject any or all offers at any time. 
8) If a qualifying higher bid is received, the Finance Director shall cause a new notice of upset bid to be

published, and shall continue to do so until a 10 -day period has passed without any qualifying upset

bid having been received. At that time, the amount of the final high bid shall be reported to the City
Council. 

9) A qualifying higher bid is one that raises the existing offer by not less than ten percent ( 10%) of the

first $ 1, 000. 00 of that existing offer and five percent ( 5%) of the remainder of that existing offer. 

10) A qualifying higher bid must also be accompanied by a deposit in the amount of five percent ( 5%) of

the bid; the deposit may be made in cash, cashier' s check, or certified check. The city will return the



deposit on any bid not accepted, and will return the deposit on an offer subject to upset if a qualifying

higher bid is received; provided that sufficient time has elapsed to allow for the payment draft, if by

check, to clear the City' s central depository and be credited to such, the return of the deposit will then

be issued within 10 days of confirmation of clearing. The city will refund the deposit of the final high

bidder at closing or apply to the sales price, as determined at the time of closing by the Finance
Director. 

11) Any Offeror' s bid deposit shall be refunded if it is not the final high bidder; or if mutually agreeable
terms cannot be settled upon if no upset bids are received, provided that sufficient time has elapsed to

allow for the payment draft, if by check, to clear the City' s central depository and be credited to such. 

Refund will be issued within 10 days of confirmation of clearing. 
12) The terms of the final sale are: 

a) City Council must approve the final high offer before the sale is closed, which it will do within 30
days after the final upset bid period has passed. 

b) The Wayne County Board of Commissioners must approve the final sale by concurrence after

final approval by City Council. 
c) Buyer must pay with cash, cashier' s check or certified check at the time of closing. 
d) Buyer must pay closing costs. 
e) Buyer must recombine both lots into one lot upon recording of the deed. 

13) The City reserves the right to withdraw the property from sale at any time before the final high bid is

accepted and the right to reject at any time all bids. 

14) If no qualifying upset bid is received after the initial public notice, the offer set forth above is hereby
accepted. City staff is authorized to seek concurrence from the Wayne County Board of
Commissioners and upon such approval, the appropriate city officials are authorized to execute the

instruments necessary to convey the property to Offeror. 

This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this
16th

day of October, 2023. 

















9/15/23, 12:02 PM Appraisal Card

realestate.waynegov.com/ITSNet/AppraisalCard.aspx?idP=1957679&Action=Auto 1/1

WAYNE COUNTY 9/15/2023 12:02:03 PM
CITY OF GOLDSBORO        WAYNE COUNTY Return/Appeal Notes:   Parcel: 3509148085
706 E SPRUCE ST PLAT: / UNIQ ID 51002
75254500   ID NO: 12000004004003

COUNTYWIDE ADVALOREM TAX (100), CITY - GOLDSBORO (100)       CARD NO. 1 of 1  
Reval Year: 2019 Tax Year: 2023 E SPRUCE ST 1.0000 LT  SRC=  
Appraised by on 01403 SOUTHSIDE TW-12 CI-01FR-00EX-2 AT- LAST ACTION 20180510
CONSTRUCTION DETAIL MARKET VALUE  DEPRECIATION CORRELATION OF VALUE

TOTAL POINT VALUE  
BUILDING ADJUSTMENTS
TOTAL ADJUSTMENT
FACTOR
TOTAL QUALITY INDEX  

USE MOD
Eff.
Area QUAL

BASE
RATE RCN EYB AYB CREDENCE TO  

01 00       % GOOD  DEPR. BUILDING VALUE - CARD 0

TYPE: SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL  

STYLE:  

 

DEPR. OB/XF VALUE - CARD 0
MARKET LAND VALUE - CARD 2,500
TOTAL MARKET VALUE - CARD 2,500
TOTAL APPRAISED VALUE - CARD 2,500
TOTAL APPRAISED VALUE - PARCEL 2,500
TOTAL PRESENT USE VALUE - PARCEL 0
TOTAL VALUE DEFERRED - PARCEL 0
TOTAL TAXABLE VALUE - PARCEL $ 2,500

PRIOR
BUILDING VALUE 0
OBXF VALUE 0
LAND VALUE 2,500
PRESENT USE VALUE 0
DEFERRED VALUE 0
TOTAL VALUE 2,500

PERMIT
CODE DATE NOTE NUMBER AMOUNT

ROUT: WTRSHD:
SALES DATA

OFF.
RECORD DATE DEED

TYPE Q/UV/I
INDICATE SALES

PRICEBOOK PAGE MOYR
03364 0329 4 2018 WD P V 0
00530 0244 1 1901 WD U I 0
00530 0244 1 1901 WD U I 0

HEATED AREA  
NOTES

P11-12 DEMO FOR 2013.
SUBAREA

TYPE
GS

AREA %
RPL
CS

FIREPLACE   
SUBAREA
TOTALS    

CODEQUALITYDESCRIPTIONCOUNTLTHWTHUNITS
UNIT
PRICE

ORIG %
COND BLDG#

SIZE
FACT AYBEYB

ANN DEP
RATE OVR

%
COND

OB/XF DEPR.
VALUE

TOTAL OB/XF VALUE 0

BUILDING DIMENSIONS    
LAND INFORMATION
HIGHEST
AND BEST
USE

USE
CODE

LOCAL
ZONING

FRON
TAGE DEPTH

DEPTH
/ SIZE

LND
MOD

COND
FACT

OTHER ADJUSTMENTS
AND NOTES
  RF   AC   LC  TO  OT

ROAD
TYPE

LAND
UNIT
PRICE

TOTAL
LAND
UNITS

UNT
TYP

TOTAL
ADJST

ADJUSTED
UNIT PRICE

LAND
VALUE

OVERRIDE
VALUE

LAND
NOTES

0100 0100 R-6 50 80 0.7700 2 1.0000
  

 65.00 50.000 FF 0.770 50.05 2503 0 

TOTAL MARKET LAND DATA   2,500  
TOTAL PRESENT USE DATA     



9/15/23, 11:57 AM Appraisal Card

realestate.waynegov.com/ITSNet/AppraisalCard.aspx?idP=1957678&Action=Auto 1/1

WAYNE COUNTY 9/15/2023 11:57:10 AM
CITY OF GOLDSBORO        WAYNE COUNTY Return/Appeal Notes:   Parcel: 3509148035
E SPRUCE ST PLAT: / UNIQ ID 51001
75254500   ID NO: 12000004004002

COUNTYWIDE ADVALOREM TAX (100), CITY - GOLDSBORO (100)       CARD NO. 1 of 1  
Reval Year: 2019 Tax Year: 2023 LT 1-7 BLK J GULLEY SURV 1.0000 LT  SRC=  
Appraised by 60 on 01403 SOUTHSIDE TW-12 CI-01FR-00EX-2 AT- LAST ACTION 20180510
CONSTRUCTION DETAIL MARKET VALUE  DEPRECIATION CORRELATION OF VALUE

TOTAL POINT VALUE  
BUILDING ADJUSTMENTS
TOTAL ADJUSTMENT
FACTOR
TOTAL QUALITY INDEX  

USE MOD
Eff.
Area QUAL

BASE
RATE RCN EYB AYB CREDENCE TO  

01 00       % GOOD  DEPR. BUILDING VALUE - CARD 0

TYPE: SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL  

STYLE:  

 

DEPR. OB/XF VALUE - CARD 0
MARKET LAND VALUE - CARD 1,270
TOTAL MARKET VALUE - CARD 1,270
TOTAL APPRAISED VALUE - CARD 1,270
TOTAL APPRAISED VALUE - PARCEL 1,270
TOTAL PRESENT USE VALUE - PARCEL 0
TOTAL VALUE DEFERRED - PARCEL 0
TOTAL TAXABLE VALUE - PARCEL $ 1,270

PRIOR
BUILDING VALUE 0
OBXF VALUE 0
LAND VALUE 1,270
PRESENT USE VALUE 0
DEFERRED VALUE 0
TOTAL VALUE 1,270

PERMIT
CODE DATE NOTE NUMBER AMOUNT

ROUT: WTRSHD:
SALES DATA

OFF.
RECORD DATE DEED

TYPE Q/UV/I
INDICATE SALES

PRICEBOOK PAGE MOYR
03364 0329 4 2018 WD C V 0
00726 0566 1 1901 WD U V 0

HEATED AREA  
NOTES

 
SUBAREA

TYPE
GS

AREA %
RPL
CS

FIREPLACE   
SUBAREA
TOTALS    

CODEQUALITYDESCRIPTIONCOUNTLTHWTHUNITS
UNIT
PRICE

ORIG %
COND BLDG#

SIZE
FACT AYBEYB

ANN DEP
RATE OVR

%
COND

OB/XF DEPR.
VALUE

TOTAL OB/XF VALUE 0

BUILDING DIMENSIONS    
LAND INFORMATION
HIGHEST
AND BEST
USE

USE
CODE

LOCAL
ZONING

FRON
TAGE DEPTH

DEPTH
/ SIZE

LND
MOD

COND
FACT

OTHER ADJUSTMENTS
AND NOTES
  RF   AC   LC  TO  OT

ROAD
TYPE

LAND
UNIT
PRICE

TOTAL
LAND
UNITS

UNT
TYP

TOTAL
ADJST

ADJUSTED
UNIT PRICE

LAND
VALUE

OVERRIDE
VALUE

LAND
NOTES

0100 0100 R-6 50 80 0.7700 2 0.5000
  SIZE

 65.00 50.000 FF 0.390 25.35 1268   

TOTAL MARKET LAND DATA   1,270  
TOTAL PRESENT USE DATA     





RESOLUTION NO. 2023- 7

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SALE OF SURPLUS

REAL PROPERTY UNDER NCGS § 160A- 269

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro and County of Wayne jointly own certain property, 409 N. 
Slocumb Street ( NC Pin #3509168565); and

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute § 160A- 269 permits the city to sell property by upset bid, 
after receipt of an offer for the property; and

WHEREAS, the County of Wayne has approved the sale at the September 19, 2023 Board meeting
and conducted the upset bid process; and

WHEREAS, the County has requested concurrence from the City on the sale for the winning offer in
the amount of $1, 000. 00 ( One Thousand Dollars and no/ 100) from The Fairlene Group, LLC. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North
Carolina, that: 

1) The City Council declares the properties as surplus. 
2) The City Council authorizes the sale of the property described above through North Carolina General

Statute § 160A- 269. 

3) City Council further authorizes and empowers City officials to execute the instruments necessary to
convey the property to the Offeror. 

4) The City reserves the right to withdraw the property from sale at any time before ownership is
transferred and recorded. 

This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this 16" day of October, 2023. 

Laura Getz, City

Y.A

I

id Ham, ayor



Attachment N Page 1 

NORTH CAROLINA 

WAYNE COUNTY 

RESOLUTION #2023-24: A RESOLUTION DECLARING SURPLUS REAL PROPERTY 
AND AUTHORIZING ITS SALE 

WHEREAS, the County and City have acquired a property interest a piece of property 
located at, 409 N. Slocumb Street, Goldsboro, NC 27530 having a parcel identification number of 
3509168565 and being more particularly described in that deed recorded in Book 2825, Page 74 
in the Office of the Register of Deeds for Wayne County ("Property"); and 

WHEREAS, the County and the City of Goldsboro obtained an interest in this property 
through tax foreclosure proceedings; and 

WHEREAS, the Staff Attorney and County Manager have recommended that this property 
be declared surplus and sold, following a careful review by the Staff Attorney and the Facilities 
Services Director that determined the County has no use for these properties; and 

WHEREAS, NCGS § 160A-269 permits the County to sell property by upset bid, after 
receipt of an offer for the property; and 

WHEREAS, the County has received an offer to purchase the property described above, 
in the amount of $1,000.00 submitted by The Fairlene Group, LLC; and 

WHEREAS, The Fairlene Group, LLC has paid the required five percent (5%) deposit on 
its offer; 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Wayne County Board of 
Commissioners that: 

I. The Board of Commissioners declares the property described above surplus and authorizes 
the sale of the Property through upset bid procedure of North Carolina General Statute 
§160A-269. 

2. A notice of the proposed sale shall be published which shall describe the property and the 
amount of the offer and shall state the terms under which the offer may be upset. 

3. Any person may submit an upset bid to the Clerk to the Board within I 0 days after the 
notice of sale is published. Once a qualifying higher bid has been received, that bid will 
become the new offer. 

4. If a qualifying higher bid is received, new notice of upset bid shall be published, and shall 
continue to do so until a I 0-day period has passed without any qualifying upset bid having 
been received. At that time, the amount of the final high bid shall be reported to the Board 
of Commissioners. 



Attachment N Page 2 

5. A qualifYing higher bid is one that raises the existing offer by not less than ten percent 
(10%) of the first $1,000.00 of that offer and five percent (5%) of the remainder of that 
offer. 

6. A qualifYing higher bid must also be accompanied by a deposit in the amount of five 
percent (5%) of the bid; the deposit may be made in cash, cashier's check, or certified 
check. The County will return the deposit on any bid not accepted, and will return the 
deposit on an offer subject to upset if a qualifYing higher bid is received. The county will 
return the deposit of the final high bidder at closing. 

7. The County reserves the right to withdraw the property from sale at any time before the 
final high bid is accepted and the right to reject at any time all bids. 

8. If no qualifYing upset bid is received after the initial public notice, the offer set forth above 
is hereby accepted. The appropriate County officials are authorized to refer the matter to 
the City of Goldsboro by the City Council and, pending approval by said body, execute the 
instruments necessary to convey the property to The Fairlene Group, LLC. 

Passed and adopted this the 19'11 day of September, 2023. 

ATTEST: 

Carol Bowden, Clerk to the Board 









U

d4

U «

3

U

U

boa

o >

ctso

U

O

U

4- 

3

b

U

o

0

o

3

0

C7

V

4. 

a, 

tiU • 

a) 

U

U . -- '

C

cd

U

7C

O

o

Op. 

0°  

U

o   

o

o

Cd

u

4

0

NOU
w

M

U
s" 

O

i

y

N. 

cn

U

cid  ' '

v '

Cd

U 

U

U

cn

cd

cnC " cd = 

cd

o

U

tw
o

aa)i

b

U

C, 

r

O ¢ 

W

Q, 

Q+ . 

cc* 

U

n

U

W

OalcW
cn

O

O

o

Ct

C3

o'

j

W4° 
y

o

p

in

t1

cd; 

v

U

rn

CC/] 

U

im3bW

C.

I

611 

I6"

II

Ir. 

U
U

l 

00

C 

O

N

M

0

0

0

0

0

0

3

N

N

U

U

U

N

U"

OC6

t

p

p

p 

b

w

v

u. 

W

ti

ti

ti

ti

ti

ti

F [

0

M

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

N

O

O

0 O

O

O

O

V

N

p

l 

vi

fV

v1

M

1,

0

v'

i

O

v) 

fV

v'

i

M

IO

T

N

N

O

O

r` 

N

00O, 

O

O

OC 

rw

r` 
lr

O
r- 

N

lO

oo
01

r` 

MOC

11OM

U

110

C` 

O

OM

f` 

O

b

to

00

N

N

M

N

D

N

t

M

N

O

I'

D

r- 

Goq

tl- 

IO

Elol 

l 

C.

I

611 

I6"

II

Ir. 

U
U

l 

00

C 

O

N

M

0

0

0

0

0

0

3

N

N

U

U

U

N

U"

OC6

t

p

p

p 

b

w

v

u. 

W

ti

ti

ti

ti

ti

ti

F [

0

M

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

N

O

O

0 O

O

O

O

V

N

p

l 

vi

fV

v1

M

1,

0

v'

i

O

v) 

fV

v'

i

M

IO

T

N

N

O

p

r` 

N

00
O, 

M

0M

OC 

rw

r` 

lr

O
r- 

N

lO

oo
01

r` 

MOC

11OM

OO

r-, 

110

C` 

O

OM

f` 

O

b

to

00

N

N

M

N

D

N

t

M

N

O

I'

D

r- 

00

tl- 

IO

O

l 

7

00

M

N

00

4

r

M

i

N

C.

I

611 

I6"

II

Ir. 

U
U

l 

00

C 

O

N

M

0

0

0

0

0

0

3

N

N

U

U

U

N

U"

OC6

t

p

p

p 

b

w

v

u. 

W

ti

ti

ti

ti

ti

ti

F [

0

M

0

0

0

0

0

O

00

0

0

0

0

0

It

00

V

O

O

O

O

O

O

N

O

O

O

O

O

N

d

v
i

cV

vi

M

to

00

vi

N

v -
i

M

N

00

oo

lO

O
I'

D

r- 

00

tl- 

IO

O

l 

7

00

M

00

4

r

M

i

C.

I

611 

I6"

II

Ir. 

U
U

l 

00

C 

O

N

M

0

0

0

0

0

0

3

N

N

U

U

U

N

U"

OC6

t

p

p

p 

b

w

v

u. 

W

ti

ti

ti

ti

ti

ti

F [

0

M





M

p

U

czcq
O .- 

0

0

0

o

O

m

C4i

O

u

o

0

o

gpp

N

U

O  

ti

S•

ti

vi

142

u

N

S. 

cC

O

O

Cl 

N

S). 

u

o00

0000

bA

N

m

oog
0

0

0

8888
0

0

0

0

d

p

1.

0+- 

i

Qy

O ( 

co

o

c 

o

00

o0

0

Q

z

o 

o

0

00
0

ami

o

0

00
0

z

o 

o

o

00
o

c

cCt

Cd

I

a
i

i^^

L4

cz

O

O

cz

cd

0w

c ' 

o

cr

4-
4

d

Con

4, 

w

CCS

O

o

n

Cd
4.
1

Q-
I.

O

G

P.. 

N

N

N

m

C

W

U

W

It

w

w

w

O

tri

O

a

Q

R

U

n

V + 

V1

V]

cd

W

O

cn

a

C

c

c

0

00

k

0

cd

F••

i

i

tom. 

CJ

Q ¢ ¢ 

p 

s 

O

W

N

W

o

W

N

3

W

d

W

O° 

x

m

m' 

o

wo

Ln

J

N

J

69
O

N

v 

i

z

z

cC

ZZ
I

x

uO

V)

Ln

w — 



          Item ______ 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

OCTOBER 16, 2023 COUNCIL MEETING 

SUBJECT: Operating Budget Amendment FY23-24 

BACKGROUND: Council adopted the FY23-24 annual operating budget on June 20, 2023. 

DISCUSSION: Street Paving Division (4136) General Fund 
On October 2,  2023, City Council authorized the award of a street resurfacing project to 
Daniels, Inc. in the amount of $278,150.95.  It was presented that $154,665.91 was to be 
funded with a fund balance appropriation from the General Fund. 

Fire (5120) General Fund 
There was an equipment failure of a fire truck that caused the cab of the truck to open 
within the garage bay causing damage to the truck and the bay door.  The insurance 
company (VFIS) will provide a rental fire truck to the City for a period of 40 days at a cost 
not to exceed $250 per day.  It is necessary to appropriate the cost of the rental in the 
amount of $10,000, and this will be funded with insurance proceeds. 

Analysis of Appropriated Fund Balance – General Fund 

Water Reclamation Facility (4177) Utility Fund 
Mr. Robert Sherman, Public Utilities Director, presented a request to authorize a change 
order in the amount of $49,395.36 to Aqua-Aerobics Systems, Inc. for additional 
unexpected work on the rebuild of sand filter #2.  This will be funded with an appropriation 
of fund balance in the Utility Fund. 

Date Description Adopted
6/20/2023 Ord 2023-43 FY23-24 Adopted Budget 1,500,000.00$  
8/7/2023 FY22-23 Purchase Order Rollovers 2,063,324.43    
8/7/2023 Balance of trash compactor for Solid Waste 119,000.00      

10/2/2023 Rebuilding Broken Places NPO 13,636.00        
Current Year Appropriations 3,695,960.43$  

10/16/2023 Resurfacing Project FY24 154,665.91$    
Proposed 154,665.91$    

Current Year with Proposed 3,850,626.34$  

K





O

O

O

O

O

O

O

0000000M
ICA

00000000

CA

W0r-

N-

o0,

z

0

Im

M

dt

M -

1

Cfl

00

O

C

1.

4  

LO

teD

C4

V

CS

66 

iGAI

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

m

m

O

Y

s

U

C6

N

N

O

C'

rJ

CYJ

O

N

d+ 

67

O

O

O

O

O

000

O

O

O

O

0

O

O

O

C

O

GQ

C

O

U

LO

LO

wLn
4= 

O

604

GPI

E» 

Fx- 

O

a

o

m

o

m

Lo

Lo

to

cm

N

0

o

cyi

o

CY6

as

cYS

C

N

L

W 

O

Y

C7

y

cis
o

LO

cOi

L6

N

o

C400

u

n, 

o

c

w 

cq

toca

E» 

Gr, 

GG- 

GG, 

U

ons

a 

W

cca

F. 

ct

U

U

o

ot

ci

N

N

L7

00

00

dl

O

CV

LO

Lo

Or

Ot

ccli cO

COVo0

N

N

b

3' 

N

w

U

n

n

d

GAI

GAI

6Q, 

GO" 

Gr 

GOD- 

cn

co

N

u

U7

Y

y

40a1

on

o

ani

O

U

U

lca
w

ca

a 

eqCD

NCD

m

W

U

U

D

Li

O. 

i"
i

ca

FWOi

y

4  

N

CS

03

ti 

w

0

m

m

a

W

v

1

4

Wd

Wd

W

M

W

b

W

ca

W

WU

w

q

W)

CZ

i

p

xi  

x  

N

r

i "

LS

x •

i+  

O  

Q,  •+ 

O

Qi  

W  

r

N

r

r

r

r

ca • 

i 

O

c

W

CCq

qp

W

C

11

r, 

W

Gni

r, 

y

W

y

o

0dH

O

O

O

O

O

O

O0000000M
ICA

00000000
CA

W0r-
N-

o0,

z

0

Im

M

dt

M -

1

Cfl

00

O

C

1.

4  

LO

teD

C4

V

CS

66 

iGAI

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

m

m

0000000orr
cq

066t-
ci-

46

o

C6

0o

u0

ci

o - 

N

O

C'

rJ

CYJ

O

N

d+ 

67

CV

L

Cl

L

O

C
a) 

O

L

C

cm

It

m

COD

COC

000

Ga

160,
111



a U
s 

UWWWA

GA00

O

M

Lo

I- 

q

E— 

L— 

N

Locl

CflEA00

67

00

P] 

00

ti

m

GV

OEA

6911

EAI

EA

II

EA

N

10

0i

0

0

0

OO

O

O

m

0

0

dO

C

000000

O

O

Gil

N

O

CV

00

ao

O

r

N

O

cD

O

6 

O

O

CV

GV

N L

6911

EAI

EA
II

EA

N

10

i

ccY

co

Pa

OO

O

O

m

Z

dO

C

000000

O

O

Gil

N

O

CV

00

ao

O

r

N

O

cD

O

6 

O

O

CV

GV

N L

LO

N

d

006

Cfl

O

O

O

CC

N

o0
C] 

O

N

LO —

4

O

CC

O

Cfl

C6

M

E

CV

cV

CA

6911

EAI
EA
II

EA

6911

EAI

EA

II

EA

cel

N

O

s~ 

ccY

O

O

O

O

cOYJ

Pa

Z

dO

C

O 0000

LO

COG

m

O

O

00

00

CO

O
r

N

O

cD

C7

GV

N

1" 

O

O

CO

LO

N

00

O

GV

ul 

m

Cfl

O

ce

CEJ

cl

CV
C] 

CV

6911

EAI

EA
II

EA

cel

N

O

s~ 

fa> 

O

Pa

Z

dO

C

O

Qi •  

c0

r7

E

III

A
N

s~ 

C4

Z

w 

c

c

c

E- 

AN

C4





RESOLUTION NO. 2023- I I

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AWARD AND PURCHASE ORDER FOR

CHILLER REPLACEMENT

WHEREAS, the chiller providing AC to Historic City Hall and City Hall Addition was installed
in 2004; and

WHEREAS, the current chiller has had a major failure, including two circuit boards and other
parts; and

WHEREAS, any parts needed are obsolete, and no longer available from the manufacturer or
any after market sources; and

WHEREAS, purchasing a new chiller has a lead time of eight months, and can be purchased
thru Omnia Purchasing Cooperative Group pricing; and

WHEREAS, the City Manager has authorized the rental and installation of a portable chiller
while we wait for the new unit, but a rental unit for the facility is expensive and a new unit should
be ordered as soon as possible; and

WHEREAS, G.S. 143- 129 requires formal bidding when the estimated expenditure of public
money is greater than $ 90, 000 for apparatus, supplies, materials, or equipment, and further requires
that the governing body must award the contract. Subsection ( e) ( 3) is an exception that allows

procurement through a cooperative purchasing group. The statute allows the governing body to
delegate the authority to award contracts, reject bids, or readvertise bids on behalf of the unit to the
Manager or other employee. City Council authorized the City Manager or the Finance Director this
authority on April 19, 2021, in RES 2021- 30; and

WHEREAS, the procurement of the new chiller equipment is being done through the Omnia
Partners Cooperative Purchasing Group. The City Manager and Finance Director stipulate that the
delegated authority limit is $ 250, 000, and contracts over this amount shall be presented to City
Council for approval and award. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of
Goldsboro, North Carolina that: 

1. The City of Goldsboro shall approve the award for the new chiller to Brady, using the
Omnia Purchasing Cooperative Group pricing, and approve the Purchase Order in the
amount of $385, 843. 00

This Resolution shall be incorporated into the official Minutes of the City of Goldsboro and shall be
in full force and effect from and after this

16th

day of October, 2023. 

Mayor

Attested by: 
J*. , 

6J 0" ' k a<. 

Laura Getz, City Clerig





RESOLUTION NO. 2023- S d

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO TO REPLACE THE

HVAC AT THE GOLDSBORO EVENT CENTER

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro renovated the former Goldsboro Country Club
located on Slocumb Street; and

WHEREAS, the former Goldsboro Country Club was renamed the Goldsboro
Event Center via City Council' s approval; and

WHEREAS, one of the 7. 5 ton units that helps to heat and cool the Ballroom area

is 27 years old and has failed; and

WHEREAS, the cost to replace this unit is $ 19, 870; and

WHEREAS, staff recommend replacing the failed unit as it will allow the public, 
our citizens and organizations to continue using the Goldsboro Event Center. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the
City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, that: 

1. City staff are authorized to replace the HVAC at a cost of $ 19, 870 at the

Goldsboro Event Center. 

2. This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this
16th

day of
October, 2023. 

Attested by: 

r oj u
Laura Getz, City Clerlo



N

















SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

INSURER F :

INSURER E :

INSURER D :

INSURER C :

INSURER B :

INSURER A :

NAIC #

NAME:
CONTACT

(A/C, No):
FAX

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

PRODUCER

(A/C, No, Ext):
PHONE

INSURED

REVISION NUMBER:CERTIFICATE NUMBER:COVERAGES

IMPORTANT:  If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

OTHER:

(Per accident)

(Ea accident)

$

$

N / A

SUBR
WVD

ADDL
INSD

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

$

$

$

$PROPERTY DAMAGE

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

AUTOS ONLY

AUTOSAUTOS ONLY
NON-OWNED

SCHEDULEDOWNED

ANY AUTO

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

Y / N

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below
If yes, describe under

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

$

$

$

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

ER
OTH-

STATUTE
PER

LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EXP

(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EFF

POLICY NUMBERTYPE OF INSURANCELTR
INSR

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

EXCESS LIAB

UMBRELLA LIAB $EACH OCCURRENCE

$AGGREGATE

$

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

DED RETENTION $

$PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

$GENERAL AGGREGATE

$PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

$MED EXP (Any one person)

$EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TO RENTED

$PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY
PRO-
JECT LOC

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

CANCELLATION

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

919 735 1237 919 735 8819
Madison Martin

10/06/2023

O'Berry & Lewis, Inc.
PO Box 127
Goldsboro  NC  27533

Wayne County Veterans and Patriots Coalition Inc
P O Box 641
Goldsboro  NC  28333

coi@oberry-lewis.com

West Bend Mutual Insurance Company

✔

A ✔ Y 10/13/2023 10/13/2024A656397

City of Goldsboro
204 S Center St
Goldsboro, NC 27530

Re: Veterans Day Parade - November 11, 2023
Additional Insured:  City of Goldsboro

1,000,000

1,000,000

1,000
100,000

2,000,000
2,000,000





RESOLUTION NO. 2023- 51
RESOLUTION AWARDING AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF CONTRACT

FOR THE SAND FILTER REHABIILATION PROJECT

WHEREAS, Council adopted Resolution 2022- 126 during the December 19, 2022 meeting, 
and authorized the City Manager to execute the contract with Aqua -Aerobics System Inc.; and

WHEREAS, material and labor cost increase for unforeseen repairs discovered in the

rehabilitation process; and

WHEREAS, Change Order No. 1 will increase the contract to include the amount of

49, 372. 22 for materials, labor, and sales taxes for the Sand filter Rehabilitation project at the

WRF; and

WHEREAS, the Finance Department will request a tax refund in 2024 to recoup the taxes. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, 
North Carolina, that: 

The City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to execute Change Order No. 1
to increase the contract for the Sand Filter Rehabilitation Project at the WRF in an

amount of $49, 395. 36, to bring the total contract price to $ 251, 074. 22. 

2. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this
16th

day of
October, 2023. 

avid H , Mayor

Attested by: Ja F

a g

Ak" tee

Laura Getz, City Cler:;` 





FimNONOzWUzQzQO

NWUZQZQcrOLLOLUQOUNOcrOmNQJOVLLOrLULLO

Ln

o

4o

N

o

C

E

O

E

y

c

p

0

p

NC

0

co

L

4- 

O

pL

pU

C

v

A

a) 

Q

OCL

C

O

O

XO) 

j

N

L

4- 

C

D

XO1

of

X

Lp

3

to

u

W

u

L

v

O

O

N

O

O

Ln

N

j

vi

X

V) 

p

4- 

E

O

R

N

N

Ln

N

C

O

N

N

O) 

L

L

QO

ON

pL

m

O

C

f0

toC

E

CO

N

3CL
O

Ca, 

a

a' 

c 

N

a

O41

W

a

Ln

Q) 

N

L

N

3

N) 

Q

N

a

a) 

U

i/

f

4-

1

j

u

N

N

O

O

LJ

Q

p

Ln

1

O

d

X

s

3° 

v

t

u

m> 

v

t

O

p

Z

L

a

OJ

L

N

L

4-

H

p

E

in

Ncu

U

O

M

L0

y

O

N

O

M

V

U

L

N

a1

Q

O

O

Y

U

C

a1

N

E

o

3

to

ca

N

o

C

o

n

v

4- 

C

0

cr

O

O

@

N

N

mOC
Z

u

a

O

tin

o

a 

v

O°

C

C

C

y

U- 

3

m

N

X

O1

O

OJ

N

O

CL

N

a) 

LJ

t

O

L

o

3

L

Z

v

VI

to

L

C: 

v

Q 

o

3

o

c

a

ca

v

U

o

u

nz

c

v

O

to

U

C

O

O

O

C

aJ

O

C

O

C

O

p

Q

L

N

c0

O

3

LU

Ln

ro

U

Q

a

Ci

u

La) 

H

U

to

W

L

a

M

L

p

a

4- 

3

c

O

a

4-

1

E

C

a

O) 

L

Z

O

O

N

mL

C

N

a

M

O

LQ

Q! 

OJ

V1

Q

Q

7

r_ 

7

O

C

C

v

GC0

z

u

N

N

O

Q

Q

NL

C

i

4- 

QiCr

N

0

W

1

3

O

N> 

m

w

O

O

iN

4J

NoO

N

p

L

p

u

Q

t

t

O

Q

C

a) 

a> 

J

L

WZ

Q3

N

O) 

M

O

O

vi

4- 

N

O

U

C

C

C

N

a, 

J

O

o

O

O

E

o

o

a

oc

Y

C

L

O

0

4+ 

C

N

c

aiL

Q) 

4= 

L (

6

to

a, 

O

O

Q

L

Q

Q

d4

U

0

m

L

A

3

O

H

H

p

U

C

C

4O

L

w

N

0

X

N

4- 

J

v

v

O

0

aa) 

W

u

Or

v

N-

0

a) 

u

aJ

t

Q

Q

UI

Q+ 

a, 

C

au

CL

L

L

co

O

a

v

to

U

V

tv

C

of

i

L

of4J

0

bA

CL

u

iJ

u

V

N

O

O

M, 

O

OJ

C> 

O

V) 

a

3

m

o

a, 

E° 

O-

0

u

v- 

C

E

CL

m

a, 

v

M

0

to

U

0

M

to

Q

Vf

N

U0
O

m

a

E

N

4 

01

3

O

L

L

z

a

c

u> 

c

v

M

3° 

w

v

O

W

o

0

m

p

a

m

v

a 

c 

o

s

3

a

N

u

u

3

N

V

p

Q

f0

H

Q

C

L

y

L

OA

O

O

0

p

L

LL

u

O

Z

U

N

W

L

E

C+ 

O

U

O_ 

C

ivLnm
Nf0

M

EL

Q
O) 

u

E

4 + 

O

Oa1

a+ + 

L

7

p

t

U

O

X

O

L

C

u

N

O

O

L

L

4- 

U

km

U

of

N

u

N

co

u

D

L

w. 

w

Ln





RESOLUTION NO. 2023- S a -- 
RESOLUTION APPOINTING MEMBERS TO ADVISORY BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS

WHEREAS, continued involvement of citizens is vital to the performance of City government; and

WHEREAS, the terms of several members on the City' s Advisory Boards and Commissions have
expired or been vacated due to members moving or resigning; and

WHEREAS, the following distinguished citizens have expressed a desire to serve upon the
indicated Board or Commission. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of
Goldsboro, North Carolina, that: 

1. The following individuals be and are hereby appointed to the specified Boards and
Commissions. The terms of the appointees shall expire on the dates indicated: 

Goldsboro Planning Commission

Filling an Unexpired Term
Duke Cox Term Expires 12- 31- 2023

Commission on Community Relations and Development

Filling an Unexpired Term

Kyle Cramer Term Expires 12- 31- 2025

2. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this
16th

day of October, 2023. 

Attested by: 

Lt MOC.5, - 

Laura Getz, City Clerk



City of Goldsboro  
Departmental Monthly Reports 

September 2023 

1. Community Relations
2. Downtown Development
3. Engineering
4. Finance
5. Fire
6. Human Resources
7. Information Technology
8. Inspections
9. Paramount Theater

10. Parks and Recreation-GEC
11. Planning
12. Police
13. Public Utilities
14. Public Works
15. Travel and Tourism

- Report recieved 10/19/23

- Report recieved 10/13/23

- Report not available at time of posting

- Report not available at time of posting

- Report not available at time of posting

Item R



 

1 
 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
September 2023 
Prepared by:  Felecia Williams, Community Relations & Development Director 
Date Prepared:  October 6, 2023 
 
• The Commission on Community Relations and Development (CCRD) met for a regular monthly meeting on Sept. 

12th.  The MLK Subcommittee met on Sept. 6th and Sept. 25th. 
• The Mayor’s Committee for Persons with Disabilities (MCPD) met for a regular monthly meeting on Sept. 21st. 
• The Goldsboro Mayor’s Youth Council (GYC) met for 2023-2024 Orientation on Sept. 6th.  

 
• Community Relations Activities:  

1. Staff attended the monthly Executive Board meeting of CALM on Sept. 19th.  
2. The department scheduled and held 4 staff meetings in September. 
 

• Community Development Activities:  
1. Staff met with Procurement Manager to discuss current/upcoming projects on Sept. 12th.  
2. Staff attended the monthly Region 10 Continuum of Care (CoC) meeting on Sept. 13th and Region 10 Coordinated 

Entry weekly case conference meeting on Sept. 13th.    
3. Staff attended two Choice Neighborhood Planning meetings on Sept. 27th. 
4. Staff engaged in 4 virtual consultations with HUD for the month of September. 

     
• The Department received one (1) housing complaint and twenty (20) requests for assistance for the month of 

September. *Please refer to Community Relations & Development Addendum for a detailed summary.   
2023 Complaints Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec AVG 

Housing Complaints 1 1 1 1 4 0 2 1 1    2 
Consumer/Other 
Requests 

27 36 14 15 19 25 32 25 20    24 

 
2022 Complaints Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec AVG 

Housing Complaints 3 0 0 0 3 1 1 0 1 0 0 1 3 
Consumer & Other 
Requests 

24 36 25 141 69 43 27 32 27 19 20 20 40 

 



 

 
 

1 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT Addendum 
September 2023 
Prepared by:  Felecia Williams, Community Relations & Development Director 
Date Prepared:  October 6, 2023 
 
Complaints/Grievances 
         

 
Nature of Complaint       

 
Resolution 

Housing – Dispute with 
landlord & Eviction 

Formal Complaint Filed – 
Advised that the City has no 
authority over judicial 
system. 

 
Assistance with Resources 
  

Resource Requested            
   

Number of 
Requests 

Resolution 

Home Repair 10 Application provided /Application follow-up provided/Referred 
County resident to Hope Restorations 

First-Time Homebuyer 
 

5 Provided program information and/or update on submitted 
application  

Homelessness 1 Completed Region 10 Continuum of Care Coordinated Entry Intake & 
Assessment; Submitted to Eastpointe; Also made referral for MH 
services 

Seeking Wheelchair 1 Referred to MCPD; wheelchair provided 
Chamber of Commerce 
Contact Information 

1 Provided telephone number 

Local Attorney’s Contact 
Information 

1  Provided telephone number 

Housing 1 Referred to Legal Aid after assessing situation 
Total Requests: 20  

 



1 

Downtown Development Department 
September 2023 Monthly Report 
Prepared By: Erin Fonseca 
Date Prepared: October 19, 2023 
 Current Downtown Development Office Projects Staff Worked On Over the Month Include:  

• Met with (or conversed by email/phone) 11 potential new property acquisition projects/persons and/or 
business interest regarding downtown. Met with 14 existing business owners.  

• Social District preparation – Approved in August. Info page has been designed and placed on website. Materials, 
including signs are being designed and quoted. Planned rollout - end of October 

• South Center Street Development planning. RFQ to be released September 15. Submittals due October 13.  
• Union Station discussions regarding stabilization, fair market value and potential reuse. Appraisal was delivered 

in March. Exploring grant opportunities to ease the cost of rehabilitation. 
• NC Main Street Annual Awards nominations completed September 26th.  
• NC Main Street conference prep and inventory of downtown maintenance needs.  
• Parking Commission discussions. Signage plan has been developed and blanks ordered to produce 80 signs. 
• Merchant/Property Information Mgmt – Continuing to integrate into new website.  
• Staff continuing to work with Choice Neighborhoods Team, attending bi-weekly calls. Also attending Economic 

Development and Urban Form subcommittee meetings. 
Downtown Development Office Events or Activities that Staff Administered or Assisted During the Month:           

• Staff supported NC Freedom Fest – Taste of Wayne, Freedom Friday and NCFF, Saturday. 

• Staff is meeting with NC Main Street staff monthly re: 2024 NC Main Street Conference, March 12-14. 

• New downtown public art installed September 22 – 29, with assistance of consultant and Building & Grounds.  

• Staff notified nominees for 11 2022-23 Annual Downtown Awards. Awards Dinner will be held on Oct 13. 

• Other Meetings: Chamber of Commerce Board Meeting, Social District Discussions, NCFF Board and 
Planning Mtgs, Transformation Grant Discussion, TRC with Planning. 

DGDC Events or Activities that Staff Administered or Assisted During the Month:  
• DGDC Merchants on September 5, Design, Economic Vitality and Promotions Committees on September 12, 

Executive Committee on September 13 and DGDC Board of Directors on September 20.   
• Wellness Wednesday – September 27 – November 1 
• Fall Movies Nights – October 12, 26, November 9 
• Downtown Fall Activities including Trick-Or-Treat, October 28 
• Downtown Annual Awards Dinner & DGDC Annual Retreat preparations 

Upcoming Events/Activities:  
• HUB Events: Taste of Wayne – Sept 7, Freedom Friday – Sept 8, NC Freedom Fest – Sept 9, First Responders 

Lunch, Oct 5, Small Batch Craft Market, Oct 7, Fall Movie Nights, Dementia Alliance Walk, Oct 21, Ride the City, 
Oct 21 

Businesses Opening/Properties Purchased & Other Updates 
• New Businesses: Labrar Coffee (reopened), Good Thymes – 112 E Mulberry St., Lola’s Vintiques – 154 S Center St 
• Coming Soon, Jay’s to reopen in October; The Firm at 156 S. Center;  WOLF Unlimited – 138 N Center; Owl-amo 

Pool Hall – 122 S Center; Brick’s Woodfired Pizza – 146 S Center St 
• Downtown Goldsboro’s Facebook page followers: 15.3K; 56.5K reach  



 

 
 

1 

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT 
September 2023 
Prepared by:  Jonathan Perry                     
Date Prepared:  10-04-23 
                
Stoney Creek Greenway   

• The greenway extends from Royall Avenue to Quail Park along Stoney Creek, approximately 1,600 
linear feet; 

• Final payment has been made to the contractor; 
• Staff is working on project closeout with NCDOT. 

 
Phase IV Sewer Collection Rehabilitation 

• Staff is working with DWI to close out this project. 
 
Mount Olive Pickle Expansion 

• Phase 1 has been completed and Mount Olive Pickle is in operation; 
• Phase 2, River Bend Pump Station, is under construction and will take approximately a year to 

complete; 
• Funding is in the State’s Budget to complete Phase III of this project. 

 
Stormwater Control Measure (SCMs) Inspections   

• Approximately 308 SCMs have been approved and 258 SCMs have been constructed to date; 
• Stormwater Control Measure Inspections are completed for September 2023. 

 
Wayne County Utility Merger/Regionalization Feasibility 

• Final scope of engineering services has been approved by DWI;  
• CDM Smith continues to work on the final report and to facilitate meetings with all interested parties 

in Wayne County; 
• The final report is anticipated for submittal in the Fall. 

 
Stormwater Inventory Project 

• Projected completion December 2023. 
 

2” Galvanized Water Line Project 
• NCDWI awarded the City a grant for the project in the amount of $5,999,395; 
• Offer and acceptance documentation was submitted by staff in September 2022; 
• Staff is working on the design phase of this project. 

 
Lead and Copper Inventory 

• Staff is coordinating the information required by EPA for lead and copper inventories; 
• City Council awarded a contract for $2,037,500 to Duke’s Root Control, Inc. of Elgin, Illinois on 

October 2, 2023. 
 



2 

 
 
 
SJAFB MAG Meter 

• This project is in the design phase; 
• The Wooten Company is working on SCADA integration and electrical design. 

 
NCSU Floodprint Project 

• Staff is working with NCSU on potential project applications for Fall 2023. 
 
2023 Resurfacing Project 

• The resurfacing project consists of resurfacing Carolina Street from Ash Street to 
the railroad approximately 200 ft. north of Vine Street and Vine Street from George Street to 
Carolina Street; 

• City Council awarded a contract for $278,150.95 to Daniels, Inc. of Garner, NC on October 2, 2023.  
 



 

 
 

1 

FINANCE   
SEPTEMBER 2023 
Prepared By: Andrea Lovelace 
Date Prepared: October 9, 2023 

 

FY 22-23
Actual to Date Actual to Date YTD %

Revenues August-22 Adjusted Budget August-23 Collected
General Fund 2,961,934$      51,820,273$        2,741,961$      5.29%
Utility Fund 3,296,962        26,826,404          3,988,290        14.87%
Downtown District Fund 4,192               112,215               1,337               1.19%
Occupancy Tax Fund 166,640           1,465,450            186,893           12.75%
Stormwater Fund 261,434           2,070,655            267,203           12.90%
     Total 6,691,162$      82,294,997$        7,185,684$      8.73%

Expenditures
General Fund 7,549,808$      51,820,273$        9,018,952$      17.40%
Utility Fund 2,393,846        26,826,404 2,896,113 10.80%
Downtown District Fund 13,867             112,215 1,848               1.65%
Occupancy Tax Fund 72,395             1,465,450 63,190 4.31%
Stormwater Fund 298,741           2,070,655 729,528 35.23%
     Total 10,328,657$    82,294,997$        12,709,631$    15.44%

FY 22-23
Revenues Actual to Date Actual to Date YTD %

August-22 Adjusted Budget August-23 Collected
Property/Occupancy Taxes 1,244,011$      20,647,821$        648,762$         3.14%
Charges for Services 4,322,261        30,835,722          5,146,937        16.69%
Revenue Other Agencies 72,793             16,395,317          (29,511)            -0.18%
Other Revenues 219,849           3,676,516            496,892           13.52%
Fund Balance -                   7,049,207            -                   0.00%
Shared Services 832,249           3,690,414            922,604           25.00%
     Total 6,691,162$      82,294,997$        7,185,684$      8.73%

Expenditures
Labor 3,845,181$      36,764,236$        4,960,926$      13.49%
Non-Labor 6,483,475        45,530,761          7,748,706        17.02%
     Total 10,328,657$    82,294,997$        12,709,631$    15.44%

FY 22-23 Actual Total 
Collections Actual August-23 Collected F-YTD

Debt Setoff 46,249$           1,979$                  2,772$             
Surplus 81,510$           305$                     305$                

FY 23-24

MAJOR CATEGORIES
FY 23-24

SELECTED OTHER INFORMATION



Prepared Date: 10/3/23 1:39 PM
Prepared By: Terrie Webber
Reviewed Date: 10/8/23 3:53 PM
Reviewed By: Catherine F. Gwynn

Current Month Prior Month Prior Year
Financial Institution 9/30/2023 8/30/2023 9/30/2022 Rate of Return

PNC - General Operating 2,828,595.91$               2,379,688.55$               2,795,764.94$               0.00%
PNC - Money Market 4,128,795.83$               4,117,965.02$               7,445,055.90$               3.25%
PNC - Debit Account 2,000.00$                       2,000.00$                       980.01$                          0.00%
Southern Bank - CD 627,031.50$                  626,326.84$                  4,108,113.96$               1.52%
NCCMT - MM - 2010 Sewer Bond D#001 43,387.29$                    43,201.01$                    251,388.18$                  n/a
NCCMT - MM - American Rescue Plan 2021 9,263,541.98$               9,223,770.43$               8,857,892.71$               n/a
NCCMT - MM - Regular 4,598,794.07$               4,579,049.76$               4,397,480.10$               n/a
Truist MMA 25,138,775.97$            25,071,717.04$            11,000,581.64$            3.25%
Truist (BB&T) - Escrow FY21 & FY22 Rolling Stock -$                                 -$                                 414,256.05$                  n/a
Truist (BB&T) - Escrow FY23 Rolling Stock 2,380,344.10$               2,380,324.54$               2,398,005.91$               0.01%
Webster (Sterling National Bank) - Escrow 341,333.66$                  340,638.19$                  1,869,589.05$               2.51%
Totals 49,352,600.31$           48,764,681.38$           43,539,108.45$           

Monthly Cash & Investment Report
September 30, 2023

Cash & Investment FY2024.xlsx 9-30-23 10/8/2023 3:54 PM



Fund Name Date From For Ck# Amount

Police-Other Restricted Funds 7/20/2023 Pat Pearce Police Services cash 50.00$                    
Police-Other Restricted Funds 8/10/2023 Pat Pearce Police Services cash 50.00$                    
Police-Other Restricted Funds 9/12/2023 Pat Pearce Police Services cash 100.00$                  

200.00$                  
200.00$                  

Donations Received Report

Quarter Ending 9/30/2023
Fiscal Year 2023-24 Totals

Fiscal Year to Date - Total Donations

FY23-24

Quarter 1 Ended 9/30/2023 - Total Donations

Donations FY23-24.xlsx FY23-24 10/8/2023 3:57 PM



Report of Budget Funds Transfers - July, 2023 through June, 2024

Department Department Head Account Name Transfers In Transfers Out
Human Resources Bernadette Dove Salaries & Wages Regular -$                              (5,212)$                              
Human Resources Bernadette Dove Health Maintenance Program 5,212$                          -$                                    

Transfers - Sep 2023 - Human Resources 5,212$                          (5,212)$                              

GEC Felicia Brown Operational Supplies -$                              (3,500)$                              
GEC Felicia Brown Roof Repairs 3,500$                          -$                                    

Transfers - Sep 2023 - GEC 3,500$                          (3,500)$                              

PW Garage Rick Fletcher Salaries & Wages Regular -$                              -$                                    
Transfers - Sep 2023 - PW Garage -$                              -$                                    

PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Salaries & Wages Regular -$                              -$                                    
Transfers - Sep 2023 - PW Solid Waste -$                              -$                                    

Fire Ron Stempien Salaries & Wages Regular -$                              (0)$                                      
Transfers - Sep 2023 - Fire -$                              (0)$                                      

Police Mike West Salaries & Wages Regular -$                              -$                                    
Transfers - Sep 2023 - Police -$                              -$                                    

Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown Tree Service 1,500$                          -$                                    
Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown Equipment Rent -$                              (1,500)$                              

Transfers - Sep 2023 - Parks & Recreation 1,500$                          (1,500)$                              

Distribution & Collections Rick Fletcher Utility Valve Truck 6,584$                          -$                                    
Distribution & Collections Rick Fletcher Aerial Fire Truck -$                              (6,584)$                              

Transfers - Sep 2023 - Distribution & Collections 6,584$                          (6,584)$                              
Transfers - ALL FUNDS - Sep 2023 16,796$                        (16,796)$                           
Transfers - ALL FUNDS - Jul 2023-Sep 2023 79,942$                        (79,942)$                           

Control Totals 130,330$                     (130,330)$                         

Budget Transfers
As per the Adopted Annual Budget Ordinance the Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to
reallocate departmental appropriations among the various objects of expenditures.      
                                      
The Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to effect interdepartmental transfers in the same 
fund not to exceed ten percent (10%) of the appropriated monies for the department whose allocation is 
reduced.  A report of all such transfers shall be made to the City Council in the month following such transfer.

Budget Transfers Summary FY24_2 - Copy.xlsx Transfers Sep 10/7/2023 9:41 PM



Red Font-Not formally accepted by Council at this time.

Grant Project Budgets Monthly Report -September 2023
Reviewed: cfg 10/8/2023 3:49 PM

Granting 
Agency Granting Agency (Full) Grant Description

Source 
(Full) S Date Received

 Grant Portion 
Budget Amount  Budget Total 

 Current 
Amount Rec'd  

 Amount Rec'd  
Project to Date 

 Current 
Amount Spent  

 Amount Spent 
to Project to 

Date 

 Positive 
(Negative) Cash 

Flow Fund
NCHFA NCHFA ESFRLP ESFRLP Rehabilitation Loan Pool State S 1/24/2017 150,000$                   150,000$                -$                   117,975$          -$                   117,975$          -$                   x 22

HUD CDBG FY18-19 Entitlement Federal F 19,523$                     19,523$                  -$                   19,523$             -$                   19,523$             -$                   x C2101
HUD CDBG FY19-20 Entitlement Federal F 8/27/2019 353,346$                   353,346$                -$                   216,456$          -$                   216,456$          -$                   x C2101
HUD CDBG FY20-21 Entitlement Federal F 10/7/2020 351,643$                   351,643$                -$                   170,649$          -$                   170,649$          -$                   x C2101
HUD CDBG FY21-22 Entitlement Federal F 354,302$                   354,302$                -$                   87,559$             -$                   87,559$             (0)$                     x C2101
HUD CDBG FY22-23 Entitlement Federal F 358,697$                   358,697$                -$                   25,149$             -$                   25,149$             -$                   x C2101
HUD CDBG FY23-24 Entitlement Federal F -$                   -$                   994$                  4,323$               (4,323)$             x C2101

NCHFA NCHFA URP-19 Urgent Repair State S 4/18/2019 100,000$                   100,000$                -$                   96,570$             -$                   96,570$             -$                   x C2101
HUD CDBG FY20-21 Entitlement CV Funding (Round 2 & 3) Federal F 10/7/2020 427,303$                   427,303$                -$                   133,792$          -$                   133,792$          -$                   x C2102
HUD HOME FY16-17 Entitlement Federal F 22,201$                     22,201$                  -$                   22,201$             -$                   22,201$             -$                   x C3101
HUD HOME FY17-18 Entitlement Federal F 73,557$                     73,557$                  -$                   67,480$             -$                   67,995$             (515)$                 x C3101
HUD HOME FY18-19 Entitlement Federal F 22,910$                     22,910$                  -$                   22,910$             -$                   22,910$             -$                   x C3101
HUD HOME FY19-20 Entitlement Federal F 8/27/2019 214,732$                   214,732$                -$                   49,554$             -$                   49,554$             -$                   x C3101
HUD HOME FY20-21 Entitlement Federal F 10/7/2020 245,547$                   245,547$                -$                   28,472$             -$                   28,472$             -$                   x C3101
HUD HOME FY21-22 Entitlement Federal F 252,710$                   252,710$                -$                   32,592$             10,000$             52,142$             (19,550)$           x C3101
HUD HOME FY22-23 Entitlement Federal F 280,171$                   280,171$                -$                   27,467$             -$                   27,467$             (0)$                     x C3101
HUD HOME FY23-24 Entitlement Federal F -$                   -$                   491$                  7,128$               (7,128)$             x C3101
HUD CDBG ARP Funding (M21-MP370209) Federal F 907,913$                   907,913$                -$                   36,436$             804$                  37,691$             (1,255)$             x C3102

Donation/Gr Private Donations, Grants and City Fire Other Restricted Special Revenue Fund Private P Ongoing 4,050$                       4,050$                     -$                   4,786$               684$                  826$                  3,960$               x F3110
Debt Debt Funded Smeal Aerial Fire Truck Debt D 9/2022 1,151,600$               1,151,600$             -$                   1,136,500$       -$                   8,537$               1,127,963$       x F3111
Debt Debt Funded Herman Park Center Debt D Not Issued yet 11,150,000$             11,150,000$           -$                   376,000$          -$                   376,000$          -$                   x G1102

Donation Private Donations 1919 LaFrance Fire Truck Restoration Private P Ongoing 80,000$                     80,000$                  -$                   32,691$             -$                   -$                   32,691$             x G1103
Donation/Gr Private Donations and Grants Parks & Rec Capital Project Fund FY19-FY24 Private P Ongoing 632,943$                   632,943$                -$                   557,943$          -$                   251,072$          306,871$          x G1104

Debt Debt Funded 2018 Street Bonds (Debt #026-G) Debt D Ongoing 5,048,522$               5,048,522$             -$                   5,046,649$       -$                   4,980,164$       66,485$             x G1105
Debt Debt Funded Police/Fire Renovation (Debt #025-G) Debt D Ongoing 6,417,326$               6,417,323$             -$                   6,417,323$       11,000$             6,287,342$       129,981$          x G1106

Donation/Gr Private Donations and Grants Parks & Rec Special Revenue Fund Private P Ongoing 45,636$                     45,636$                  -$                   46,386$             260$                  42,834$             3,552$               x G1107
Donation/Gr Private Donations, Grants and City Community Relations Special Revenue Fund Private P Ongoing 18,252$                     18,252$                  -$                   18,252$             -$                   14,477$             3,775$               x G1108

NC OSBM NC Office State Mgmt & Budget State Grants Misc-OSBM FY23 St Approp State S 2/2/2023 50,000$                     50,000$                  -$                   50,603$             -$                   7,513$               43,090$             x G1109
DOJ Dept. of Justice Federal Forfeiture Federal F Ongoing 274,138$                   274,138$                -$                   275,476$          11,563$             127,666$          147,810$          x P3101
DOJ NC Dept of Justice/US DOJ 2017 GPD Gang Equipment Grant Federal S 1/3/2019 21,366$                     21,366$                  -$                   18,408$             -$                   18,408$             0$                      x P3102
DOJ Dept. of Justice 2019 JAG Equipment Grant Federal F 9/25/2019 47,003$                     47,003$                  -$                   42,435$             -$                   42,435$             -$                   x P3102
DOJ Dept. of Justice 2020 JAG Equipment Grant Federal F 9/19/2020 34,766$                     34,766$                  -$                   30,381$             -$                   30,381$             -$                   x P3102
DOJ Dept. of Justice 2022 JAG Equipment Grant Federal F 12/19/2022 23,574$                     23,574$                  4,853$               21,266$             -$                   21,266$             -$                   x P3102

Donation/Gr Private Donations, Grants and City Police Other Restricted Special Revenue Fund Private P Ongoing 62,183$                     62,182$                  100$                  65,018$             -$                   19,487$             45,531$             x P3104
DOJ Dept. of Justice FY20 CRF Equipment Grant Federal F 6/8/2020 87,179$                     87,179$                  -$                   87,179$             -$                   87,179$             (0)$                     x P3106

FEMA FEMA Hurricane Florence Federal F 6/1/2019 2,340,773$               4,604,077$             -$                   4,982,838$       -$                   4,179,246$       803,592$          x R1102
FTA Federal Transportation Admin. FY2016 TIGER VIII Center Street & Streetscape Federal F 10/1/2018 6,751,751$               7,189,383$             -$                   7,385,809$       -$                   6,527,315$       858,494$          x R1103

FEMA FEMA GO FEMA GO-Source Capture Exhaust Systems FS 1, 2, 3, Federal F 7/24/2020 202,083$                   202,083$                -$                   202,083$          -$                   202,083$          -$                   x R1104
UST/Wayne Co US Treasury-Wayne Co. CARES Act Funding Federal F 9/9/2020 966,688$                   966,688$                -$                   966,688$          -$                   966,688$          (0)$                     x R1105

NC Tourism NC Tourism Recovery Grant CARES Act Funding - Marketing Travel & Tourism Federal F 10/6/2020 25,750$                     25,750$                  -$                   25,750$             -$                   25,750$             -$                   x R1106
Triangle YMCA Triangle YMCA Remote Learning Grant Parks & Recreation Federal F 11/18/2020 19,681$                     19,681$                  -$                   19,681$             -$                   19,681$             -$                   x R1106

UST US Treasury ARP Funding Federal F 3/11/2021 8,813,514$               8,813,514$             37,771$             9,263,542$       -$                   5,279,797$       3,983,745$       x R1107
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-Phase IV Sewer Rehab Federal F 11/26/2019 8,905,676$               9,083,790$             -$                   4,851,571$       -$                   8,519,172$       (3,667,601)$      x S1102
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-Sewer Rehab (Big Ditch & Carolina) Federal F 3/24/2021 1,235,100$               1,259,802$             -$                   639,892$          -$                   730,989$          (91,097)$           x S1103

Debt Debt Funded 2010 Sewer GO Bonds D#001-E Debt D 2010 8,605,000$               8,684,163$             -$                   489,923$          -$                   489,923$          (0)$                     x S1104
Goldenleaf Goldenleaf Foundation Hurr. Matthew Recovery Stormwater Drain. & Swr. RePrivate P 10/11/2017 598,574$                   598,574$                -$                   598,574$          -$                   598,574$          (0)$                     x S1105
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR Little Cherry Big Cherry Pump Station Relocation Federal F Not Accepted Yet 3,058,000$               30,000$                  -$                   30,000$             -$                   30,000$             -$                   x S1106

DWI NC Dept of Env. Quality DWI VUR (AIA) Project AIA-D-VUR-0004 & AIA-W-VUR-000State S 1/24/2022 300,000$                   304,500$                -$                   4,500$               -$                   302,300$          (297,800)$         x S1107
DWI NC Dept of Env. Quality DWI VUR MRF Project MRF-M-VUR-0001 State S 1/24/2022 100,000$                   101,500$                -$                   1,500$               9,374$               42,900$             (41,400)$           x S1108

City Fees Stormwater Fees Stormwater Drainage Projects City Fees C Ongoing 1,594,366$               1,594,366$             -$                   1,861,258$       4,970$               1,201,000$       660,258$          x T2201
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-Waterline Repl. & Booster Pump Station Insta Federal F 6/6/2019 32,400$                     265,513$                -$                   233,113$          -$                   265,513$          (32,400)$           x W1111
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-Plate Settlers Project Federal F 3/7/2021 1,484,909$               1,484,909$             -$                   1,519,536$       -$                   1,517,550$       1,986$               x W1112
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-2" Galvanized Water Line Replacement Federal F Not Accepted Yet 5,999,395$               6,029,395$             -$                   30,000$             -$                   25,000$             5,000$               x W1113

Total 80,316,753$             80,540,776$           42,724$             48,488,336$     50,140$             44,426,623$     4,061,713$       

Prepared: tlw 10/5/2023 7:45 AM
INFLOWS OUTFLOWS

Grant Source Legend:
F = Federal S= State D = Debt P = Private C = City Fees

Grants listed above represent awards that have been officially awarded by the Grantor, and officially accepted by the Grantee (City), unless 
noted in red font.  Those items in red, the Finance Department has received some formal award letter from the Grantor but the City has not formally
accepted the award.  The list above does not take into account grants that may have been applied for and the City may have received tentative award.  If I did
not have an official award, I did not place it on this list.

Notes:
* DWI still reviewing 30+ Change Orders on Ph IV SRF.  Will authorize reimbursements after DWI has concluded the review process.

Project Budget to Actual Monthly Report_2023-09  Sep_0.xlsx Grants 2023-09 Sep 10/8/2023 3:49 PM



FIRE DEPARTMENT  
September 2023 
Prepared By: Ron Stempien  
Date Prepared: October 9, 2023  
 

    

  The cause of fire incidents was determined 55% of the time. 45% of fire incidents were classified as 
undetermined or still under investigation.   
  

  The average response time of the first arriving unit was 5:05.   
  

  A full response within 8 minutes occurred 98% of all calls.   
  

  There were 0 Civilian injuries, 0 Civilian deaths, 0 Fire Service injuries and 0 Fire Service deaths.   
  

  The American Red Cross assisted 2 families due to displacement because of fire damage.   
 

   Fire prevention and community service activities included: Car Seat Safety Checks with Safe Kids of Wayne 
County, Station Tours, Birthday Parades, Fill the Boot, ROCC Foundation Community Day, Freedom Fest, 
and Truck Displays. We reached 45 Adults and 75 Children with fire prevention materials.  
 

 

 

Note: Other Fire Calls includes Good Intent Calls, Bomb Scares, Vehicle Fires, Cooking Fires, False Alarms, Assist GPD, Service Calls, Haz-Mat Calls, Grass 
Fires and Unauthorized Burning.  

    
1  

2023 Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr.  May Jun. July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Avg. Total  
Total Incidents: 277 222 229 262 263 277 389 415 376    301 2710 

Structure Fires: 2 3 7 4 4 4 4 4 7    5 44 

EMS Calls: 117 94 93 86 103 116 203 195 192    133 1199 

Vehicle Accidents: 31 26 28 36 42 27 31 39 42    34 302 

Fire Alarms: 42 38 33 55 45 58 67 73 61    52 472 

Other: 85 61 68 81 69 72 84 104 74    78 698 

Training Hours: 3118 2873 3074 2218 2063 1777 1707 1680 1593    2233 20103 

Safety Car Seat Checks: 7 4 0 1 0 5 4 0 0    2 21 

Inspections: 115 116 155 149 110 88 105 130 156    125 1124 

2022 Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr.  May Jun. Jul. Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Avg. Total  
Total Incidents: 216 195 226 231 236 264 246 264 280 231 255 296 245 2490 
Structure Fires: 5 6 8 5 4 1 3 3 1  1 5 1 4 43 

EMS Calls: 79 78 80 92 83 86 99 124 103 73 79 82 88 1058 
Vehicle Accidents: 22 23 22 26 32 38 27 24 33 31 30 35 29 343 

Fire Alarms: 44 35 48 53 63 56 57 53 73 59 67 78 57 686 
Other: 66 53 68 54 54 83 60 60 70 68 74 100 67 811 

Training Hours: 2757 2806 2884 2260 1704 1715 1452 1700 1647 1835 1742 1214 1976 23716 
Safety Car Seat Checks: 0 0 4 3 5 2 5 3 2 5 1 2 3 32 

Inspections: 132 123 153 136 143 187 112 142 145 135 134 80 135 1622 



 

 
 

1 

Information Technology  
September 2023 
Prepared By: Angela Price 
Date Prepared: October 5, 2023 
 

• Joint Operations Center set up for Freedom Fest. 
• Support for Freedom Fest with drones and tech support. 
• Removed surplus property from City Hall. 
• Setup controllers for new phone system. 
• Received new phone equipment and verified delivery. 
• Replaced conduit for equipment on roof of City Hall Addition. 
• Relocated tertiary storage units. 
• Set up KIOSK support to remove messages. 
• Replaced UPS units at the Police Department and upgraded UPS in IT closet. 
• Replaced conduit on City Hall Addition roof for new data cables. 
• Migrated Fire Department phones and tablets to FirstNet. 
• Staff attended Constructive Conflict Management. 
• Updated Banner Security Certificate. 
• Prepped for a portable chiller for City Hall & City Hall Addition. 
• Migrated Getac storage to Nutanix. 

 
 

2023 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG TOTAL 
               
Tickets 
Opened 

825 719 842 692 730 689 710 722 694    736 6623 

Tickets 
Closed 

776 840 805 694 694 778 746 701 693    748 6729 

Open  
Tickets 

433 312 349 347 383 294 258 279 280    326  

 
 
 

2022 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG TOTAL 
               
Tickets 
Opened 

379 353 430 362 451 503 562 523 624 749 663 656 521 6,255 

Tickets 
Closed 

310 304 
 

466 398 392 540 464 548 590 686 689 795 515 6,182 

Open  
Tickets 

474 523 487 451 510 473 571 546 580 643 617 
 

478 529  

 
 



 

 
 

1 

INSPECTIONS 
Sept 2023 
Prepared By: Allen Anderson, Jr. 
Date Prepared 10/04/23 
 
The valuation of all permits issued (Residential, Commercial, & Miscellaneous) for September totaled $11,837,067.  
New Residential permits are included in this valuation. Significant projects this month: WCC Center for Industrial 
Technology at $1.6M, Panda Express Restaurant at $2M and 7 new single-family dwellings at $1.4M. 
 
The valuation of all buildings (Residential & Commercial) permits totaled $7,684,055. Miscellaneous permits 
(plumbing, mechanical, electrical, fire, etc.) are not included. 
 
All permit fees collected for the month totaled $53,259.  Of the permit fees collected for the month, $4,800 was 
collected in technology fees.  Plan review fees collected during the month totaled $3,715. Business Registration fees 
collected totaled $1,640. 
 
The Inspectors did a total of 827 inspections for the month.  During the month of September, eight (8) business 
inspections were completed.  A total of 366 permits were issued for the month.    One hundred and seven (107) 
plan reviews were completed for September. 
 
 
 

 

2023 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Avg
All Permit Valu. $ (M) $7.7 $43.8 $23.8 $9.2 $10.4 $7.6 $36.5 $59.7 $11.8 $23.4
All Bldgs Valu. $ (M) $3.5 $42.1 $6.3 $5.0 $6.7 $5.3 $25.8 $48.6 $7.7 $16.8
New Residential $ (M) $1.5 $652K $2.8 $2.6 $4.1 $2.9 $4.3 $3.5 $1.4 $2.6
Misc $ (M) $4.2 $1.7 $17.5 $4.2 $3.7 $2.3 $10.7 $11.2 $4.2 $6.6
Permit Fee $ (K) $31 $40 $65 $39 $50 $35 $61 $81 $53 $51
Inspections 511 517 626 542 717 781 709 747 827 664
Permits Issued 287 413 347 414 333 348 359 463 366 370
Plan Reviews 49 35 49 53 83 58 75 74 107 65

2022 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Avg
All Permit Valu. $ (M) $3.9 $11.1 $5.4 $6.7 $5.1 $9.6 $17.8 $6.5 $9.7 $10.7 $8.6 $5.6 $8.4
All Bldgs Valu. $ (M) $2.1 $9.1 $3.9 $5.0 $2.4 $7.6 $15.4 $3.3 $6.5 $9.4 $6.4 $2.3 $6.1
New Residential $ (M) $813K $3 $472K $4.4 $341K $1.3 $0 $300K $3.1 $1.1 $1.1 $1.1 $1.4
Misc $ (M) $1.8 $2 $1.4 $1.7 $2.7 $2.0 $2.4 $3.2 $3.1 $1.3 $2.3 $3.3 $2.3
Permit Fee $ (K) $39 $43 $43 $35 $43 $41 $36 $48 $43 $42 $33 $29 $40
Inspections 460 551 654 614 584 730 531 661 621 587 836 512 612
Permits Issued 258 281 288 281 336 344 253 306 488 306 288 208 303
Plan Reviews 38 66 79 39 45 48 58 56 74 57 33 23 51



 

 
 

1 

 
PARAMOUNT 
September 2023 
Prepared by: Adam Twiss 
Date Prepared 10/5/2023 

 
 

--------------PARAMOUNT THEATRE-------------- 
 

• September activity included 13 rental/use days, including 3 public performances. 
o Notable Activity: 

 Freedom Fest Movie and support activities 
 GB Love of Dance performance and auction 
 Yelverton Gospel Concert 

• September cancelled/rescheduled programming includes 0 days, 0 public performances 
• Repairs and Maintenance:  

 Façade Elements removed, treated, and reattached by TA Loving in Sept - Oct 
 Essential HVAC Controls (non-mechanical) upgrade proposed for consideration. 
 Wheelchair lift – To be revisited in 2024. 
 Sound System repair and upgrade – Foundation to fund. 
 Roofing and HVAC system investigated for source of minor interior water damage. 

 
 

--------------FINANCIAL-------------- 
 

 

Expenses: $37,664:   Labor: $25,425 / Operations: $6,591 /Artist and Renter box office Payout: $5,648 
Revenues: $19,419:    Tickets: -$5,640 / Building Rentals: -$13,084 / Concession: $695  
 
  

 

   
 

 

Jul-23 Aug-23 Sep-23 Oct-23 Nov-23 Dec-23 Jan-24 Feb-24 Mar-24 Apr-24 May-24 Jun-24 FY 24 Total Average

Exp $25,165 $64,018 $37,664 $126,847 $42,282

Rev $15,366 $13,492 $19,419 $48,277 $16,092

Jul-22 Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Nov-22 Dec-22 Jan-23 Feb-23 Mar-23 Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 FY 23 Total Average

Exp $47,039 $34,677 $52,943 $64,232 $38,325 $149,481 $63,274 $46,490 $66,591 $75,399 $100,423 $110,336 $849,210 $70,768

Rev -$867 $9,685 $27,448 $27,531 $54,098 $99,030 $49,176 $12,457 $67,200 $47,572 $77,666 $71,398 $542,394 $45,200



 
1 
 

Parks & Recreation/Golf Course/Goldsboro Event Center 
September 2023 
Prepared By: Felicia Brown 
Date Prepared – 10/09/23 

 
• Our Bryan Multi-Sports Complex (MSCX) was used as a site for several high school soccer games in 

September – 250 participants 
 

• Our Summer Swimming Pool season concluded Monday, September 4, 2023 
 

• Specialized Recreation hosted a Golf Day at Goldsboro Golf Course on September 6th – 12 participants 
 
• Goldsboro Event Center (GEC) hosted fifteen (15) events during September – 1,829 guests and two (2) 

City of Goldsboro events – 92 guests 
 

• Staff at the GEC had to turn away 44 patrons due to dates already being booked 
 

• Golden Agers held their monthly luncheon on September 13th – 20 participants 
 

• Goldsboro Golf Course hosted several tournaments this month including SJAFB Air Force Ball Committee 
– 68 golfers and a Pickleball Tournament – 15 players 
 

• Youth Karate Program at WA Foster Center in September – 121 participants  
 

• Attendance in our Youth and Adult Game Rooms at WA Foster Center – 257 visitors  
 

• Senior Card Group Play at TC Coley Community Center – 127 participants  
 

• Gym Open Play at WA Foster Center for Adults and Youth during September – 522 participants  
 

• Park Maintenance Staff continue to clean the park restrooms and the restrooms at the HUB daily 
 

• Park Maintenance Staff continue to tend to the landscaping on Center Street 
 

• As of July 2021, expenditures at all locations on the following report now reflect ALL STAFF associated 
with/assigned to that location – Full-time staff, Part-time staff, and Seasonal staff 

  



 

2023 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP 
O
C
T 

N
O
V 

D
E
C 

AVG 

Goldsboro Event Center                          
Rental Revenue $21,154 $17,487 $22,241 $18,705 $11,441 $11,359  $12,152 $30,435 $9,465       $17,160 
Facility Usage 1250 1975 1802 3225 2065   2165  2016 2536  1921        2106 
Expenditures $6,742 $8,122 $7,537 $6,475 $13,627 $17,384  $8,527  $9,749 $14,049        $10,246 
                            
W. A. Foster Recreation Center                         
Program Revenue $2,860 $2,977 $2,195 $1,170 $1,165 $14,570   $825 $230 $1,210        $3,022 
Rental Revenue $948 $1,827 $2,918 $1,088  $625 $308   $2,195 $603  $1,085       $1,289 
Facility Usage 2633 1632 2022 2651  2983 1546   2077 1942 2013        2167 
Expenditures $6,989 $12,076 $12,603 $11,993  $8,585 $26,741  $19,668 $17,541 $10,287       $14,054 
                            
T. C. Coley Community Center                         
Program Revenue $497 $1,130 $539 $280  $250 $167  $211 $237 $200        $390 
Rental Revenue $1,890 $720 $450 $450  $450 $1,015 $1,015 $80 $490       $729 
Facility Usage 197 73 170 193  210 154   177 197   175       172 
Expenditures  $1,874 $1,379 $2,203 $3,934  $6,644 $14,466  $6,706 $9,164  $6,005        $5,819 
                            
Specialized Recreation                         
Program Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0  $0 $36   $18 $0  $0       $6 
Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0  $0 $0  $0 $0   $0       $0 
Facility Usage 190 182 98 98  45  74  166 184   134       130 
Expenditures $7,618 $8,447 $6,350 $6,729  $7,462 $11,736  $8,627  $5,612  $4,477        $7,451 
                            
Senior Programs & Pools                         
Program Revenue $0 $185 $0 $140  $11 $4,082 $8,749  $3,408 $930       $1,945 
Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0  $0 $400  $875  $700 $774       $305 
Facility Usage 166 251 295 210  212 2383 2720  2025  175       937 
Expenditures $3,749 $5,489 $4,688 $3,818  $5,927 $20,543 $21,611  $15,760  $5,088       $9,630 
                            
Athletics, Field & Picnic Shelters, Bryan MSCX                      
Program Revenue $65 $32,120 $23,050 $1,142 $5,780  $2,565  $45 $25,540  $1,605        $10,212 
Rental Revenue $6,136 $0 $85 $0  $900 $0  $0  $1,950  $450       $1,058 
Facility Usage 17550 19750 21900 22350  36285 21222  14380   15290 20025        20972 
Expenditures $4,917 $9,557 $10,461 $10,886 $10,456 $33,132 $7,678  $14,900 $12,629       $12,735 
                            
Golf Course                         

Revenues $37,930 $32,709 $55,850 $48,454 $56,560  $73,812  $61,821  $63,590 $57,788        $54,279 

Expenditures $63,976 $35,563 $52,218 $36,482 $53,315 $60,208 $31,528 $83,528  $46,397       $51,468 
Rounds of Golf 1200 1592 2788 1941  2309  2120 2110  2076  2153        2032 
Net -$26,046 -$2,854 $3,632 $11,972 $3,245  $13,603 $30,293  -$19,938  $11,391        $2,871 
                            
Special Events                         
Revenues / Sponsorships $0 $2,000 $0 $0  $1,600 $1,730 $1,659  $0 $0        $777 
Participation 0 200 70 152  160 101   101  $0 $0       87 
Expenditures $18 $911 $511 $94  $3,170 $2,194 $1,551   $0 $0        $939 
                            
TOTAL REVENUE $71,480 $91,155 $107,328 $71,429 $78,782  $110,044  $89,565 $126,773 $73,997       $91,173 
TOTAL EXPENSES $95,883 $81,544 $96,571 $80,411 $109,186 $186,404  $105,896 $156,254 $98,932       $112,342 

TOTAL REVENUE FOR THE YEAR $820,553          

TOTAL EXPENSES FOR THE YEAR $1,011,081           



 

 
 

2022 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 
Herman Park Recreation Center 
Program 
Revenue $1,910 $520 $720 $978 $2,050 $27,880 $3,200 $1,190 $720 $1,710 $1,505 $990 $3,614 

Rental Revenue  $735 $1,475 $1,530 $2,350 $520 $1,366 $1,013 $1,895 $0 $0 $450 $450 $982 
Facility Usage 250 189 243 188 159 1475 470 224 286 468 390 292 386 
Expenditures $7,135 $5,287 $6,294 $6,126 $5,142 $8,344 $17,670 $8,333 $4,855 $5,048 $4,652 $4,485 $6,948 
               

WA Foster Recreation Center 
Program 
Revenue $895 $295 $505 $430 $2,453 $3,750 $1,475 $1,185 $1,108 $1,258 $563 $1,952 $1,322 

Rental Revenue $900 $2,820 $1,800 $3,058 $2,163 $1,653 $2,950 $1,025 998 $1,238 $513 $1,377 $1,625 
Facility Usage 1595 1565 1565 2051 1814 2495 2268 2814 1825 1719 1579 2325 1779 
Expenditures $18,218 $18,684 $16,911 $16,186 $12,952 $13,819 $29,738 $15,471 $8,798 $11,022 $9,556 $10,764 $15,177 
               

T.C. Coley Community Center 
Rental Revenue $518 $450 $518 $518 $880 $948 $525 $698 $855 $585 $585 $585 $639 
Expenses $1,848 $0 $0 $0 $80 $0 $100 $0 $0 $42 $0 $357 $202 
               

Specialized Recreation 
Program 
Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0 $39 $0 $3 

Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Facility Usage 95 119 152 58 360 220 203 211 222 230 160 123 179 
Expenditures $5,865 $5,592 $5,921 $5,620 $4,039 $4,761 $6,253 $2,946 $2,064 $10,867 $11,985 $6,856 $6,064 
               

Senior Programs & Pools 
Program 
Revenue $105 $105 $105 $105 $1,807 $8,484 $4,936 $2,594 $190 $190 $462 $190 $1,606 

Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Facility Usage 232 376 375 1013 1243 3492 3287 1870 268 256 194 271 1073 
Expenditures $1,027 $2,257 $1,874 $1,722 $2,437 $11,092 $37,817 $30,044 $13,284 $5,555 $3,114 $5,234 $9,621 
               

Athletics, Field & Picnic Shelters, Bryan MSCX 
Program 
Revenue $5,555 $16,145 $10,338 $3,319 $19,384 $2,790 $3,155 $27,200 $27,200 $2,990 $7,460 $1,362 $10,575 

Field / Shelter 
Rental $ $0 $0 $0 $150 $75 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $300 $44 

Facility Usage 10673 14935 23858 29346 44914 36785 11450 13125 13125 23100 23000 13425 21478 

Expenditures $22,418 $15,209 $16,761 $19,436 $34,794 $10,597 $16,635 $11,609 $9,099 $8,745 $13,479 $5,587 $15,364 

               

Golf Course 
Revenues $15,988 $33,437 $50,876 $63,756 $68,934 $61,883 $51,301 $56,058 $50,749 $58,366 $34,376 $26,979 $47,725 
Expenditures $31,667 $37,653 $43,486 $35,649 $38,279 $49,110 $57,300 $80,153 $43,513 $41,316 $34,791 $43,762 $44,723 
Rounds of Golf 433 1296 1724 2502 1936 1976 1816 1401 1291 1699 1120 541 1478 
Net -$15,680 -$4,216 $7,390 $28,107 $30,655 $12,773 -$5,999 -$24,100 $7,236 $17,051 -$415 -$16,782 $3,002 
               

Special Events 
Revenues / 
Sponsorships $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,975 $0 $0 $300 $370 $0 $0 $220 

Participation 0 0 0 1600 0 110 0 0 75 766 0 5000 629 
Expenditures $2,013 $110 $110 $285 $0 $1,599 $0 $0 $472 $472 $0 $1,861 $577 
               

TOTAL 
REVENUE $26,606 $55,247 $66,392 $74,664 $98,266 $110,729 $68,555 $91,845 $81,122 $66,707 $45,952 $34,185 $820,269 

TOTAL 
EXPENSES $90,191 $84,792 $91,357 $85,024 $97,723 $99,322 $165,513 $148,556 $82,085 $83,067 $77,577 $78,905 $1,184,112 

TOTAL REVENUE FOR THE YEAR $820,269        

TOTAL EXPENSES FOR THE YEAR $1,184,112         

 
**Expenditures include part-time labor cost, facility operational cost, and full-time labor cost.  Not included in expenditures is loan/bond payments 
and electricity for the areas except for our Golf Course.  All these costs are included in our Golf Course Expenditures. 



 

 
  

1 

GOLDSBORO POLICE DEPARTMENT 
September 2023 
Prepared By:  Michael D. West          
Date Prepared:  October 9, 2023  
 
Total Part I Crimes (Homicide, Rape, Robbery, Aggravated Assault, Burglary, Larceny, Motor Vehicle 
Theft, and Arson) for September 2023 was 202, compared to 166 for September 2022. 
 
Property with an estimated value of $411,113 was reported stolen, while property with an estimated 
value of $142,829 was recovered and property damaged was $32,487. 
 
Officers arrested 83 people and issued 182 citations during the month. There were 11 drug-related 
charges.  
 
There was 0 report(s) of assault(s) on officer(s).  

PART I CRIME COMPARISON & TREND 
2023 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total  

OFFENSE 
Homicide 0 0 1 2 2 0 0 0 0    5  
Rape 0       2  1  2 0 0  0 0            0      5  
Robbery 2 1     4  1 5 4  2 6 4    29  
Aggravated Assault 15 17 26 16 20 17 23 23 22    179  
Breaking & Entering 22 16  12  18 29  24  30  28 27         206  
Larceny 112 88     110    114 160  148  135  162 131     1160  
Motor Vehicle Theft 10  10 16  12 9  9 23 22    16       127  
Arson 0 0 0  0  1  0  0 0 2      3  
TOTALS 161 134 170  165  226  202  213  241 202      1714  

2022 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total  
OFFENSE 
Homicide 0 1 2 0 0 2 0 0 1  0  0  1 7  
Rape 1 2 1 3 1 1 1 1 2 0 3 3 19  
Robbery 1 2 6 3 5 3 8 2 2 2 5 2 41  
Aggravated Assault     11 12 20 31 27 20 20 19 25 16 13 13 227  
Breaking & Entering 25 19 18 26 19 28 24 16 24 17 10 10 236  
Larceny 92 86     95 118 94 117 106 127 103 162 102 112 1314  
Motor Vehicle Theft 6 6 7 5 15 21 9 7 9 14 15 6 120  
Arson 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2  

TOTALS 136 129 149 187 161 192 168 172 166 211 148 147 1966  

 

 
Revenue collected for September 2023 included:    

 Police Reports   $ 

 
 

  630.00  
 Fingerprints   $      80.00  
 Special Events                                                                                 $ 100.00  
             Total     $   810.00   
        



 

 
 

1 

PUBLIC UTILITIES DEPARTMENT 
September 2023 
Prepared By: Robert Sherman 
Date Prepared: October 9, 2023 
 

Water Treatment Plant 
• The Water Treatment Plant operations are proceeding smoothly. 

o Currently implementing Capital Projects for the replacements of the ATSs at the WTP and at the 
NRPS. 

o The Water Treatment Plant is fully staffed. Currently, there is one uncertified operator who 
completed school in September and will be testing in October. 
 

Water Reclamation Facility 
• The Water Reclamation Facility (WRF) operations have been performing well. The average daily flow 

for September is 9.76-MGD. The yearly average flow for the WRF is 8.86-MGD. This puts the WRF at 
62% capacity. 
o All the city’s 26 pump stations are operating well. No major issues to report. 
o Capital projects: Replacement of the underdrain system for Sand filter #2 is in progress, 

Generator at Westbrook L/S, and Upgrade of the Public Utilities Telemetry System Replace 
Transfer Switches at the Neuse River Pump Station and WTP, Replace Bulk Storage Tank at the 
WRF is in progress, Construction of Bay 8 enclosure at the Compost Facility and Replace flow 
meters at the WTP.  

o 3 uncertified operators at the WRF. All scheduled to test for certification in December. One 
operator position is currently open. 

o Ash St. Lift Station upgrade with MOPCO is in service. River Bend Lift Station construction has 
started. The River Bend lift station will replace Big and Little Cherry lift stations. 

o No issues during the Tropical Storm Ophelia. It produced 3.16 inches of rain over the weekend. 
 

Compost Facility 
• Two hundred and twenty-six cubic yards of compost and mulch were sold in September 2023. 
• 1 Compost operator with no Class B driver’s license, but the Compost Facility is fully staffed. 
• 2 operators obtained their Grade 1 Wastewater Operator Certification. 

 

Historical data for water and sewer volumes are in million gallons per day (MGD) and are average daily flows for each 
month. 

2023 
MGD 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Yearly 
Average 

Water* 5.82 5.80 6.32 5.35 5.58 6.76 6.29 6.30 6.04    6.03 

Sewer** 7.23 9.94 7.81 9.94 8.64 7.87 9.69 8.82 9.76    8.86 
Compost 163 358 835 1509 888 866 822 845 226    724 

*Water permit- 14.0 MGD; **Wastewater permit- 14.2 MGD 
2022 
MGD 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Yearly 
Average 

Water* 5.608 5.487 5.60 5.53 5.91 6.15 6.304 6.330 6.254 5.97 5.80 6.086 5.92 
Sewer** 9.15 9.32 8.63 7.86 7.57 6.56 7.85 7.34 7.05 6.99 6.48 6.67 7.62 

Compost 165 972 663 1,287 995 278 419 204 491 619 830 262 599 
*Water permit- 14.0 MGD; **Wastewater permit- 14.2 MGD 



Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
10.7 17.6 11.3 9.8 19.0 20.0 24.5 20.7 16.4 16.7
1.6 5.2 3 3.3 4.6 3.7 2.5 3.4 2.0 3.3
30 22 23 24 31 16 21 23 17 23.0
12 12 18 16 24 10 17 24 11 16.0
12 3 5 3 2 3 5 1 1 3.9
3 5 8 5 4 8 6 4 7 5.6

49 61 63 33 44 39 39 28 42 44.2
0 0 0 61 91 82 97 104 51 54.0
0 15 69 75 276 102 67 103 166 97.0

249 207 265 245 279 213 228 232 228 238.4
79$       74$       76$       75$       86$       77$       87$       92$       79$       80.5

1.08 0.91 1.10 0.98 1.08 1.03 1.11 1.14 1.04 1.052
0 38 0 37 71 56 39 13 23 30.8
0.9 0.8 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 1.0 0.7 0.644

5 4 5 5 4 0 1 1 3 3.1

9 8 23 17 32 20 15 25 11 17.8
70 65 105 145 113 110 88 40 34 85.6
49.7 102 170.8 130.2 190 196.5 229.2 275.9 277 180.1
4.05 2.07 2.16 2.43 0.00 0.40 0.38 1.95 1.29 1.6
0.00 2.85 0.00 0.00 50.48 7.91 3.68 11.80 18.41 10.6
1 3 1 7 4 0 3 1 1 2.3

9.1 4.7 9.0 14.8 12.9 15.3 37.1 31.0 4.5 5 11.9 6.4 13.5
2.3 1.9 2.2 1.9 3.5 7.1 3.0 4.1 4.1 3.5 4 2.4 3.3
33 37 25 26 19 27 25 24 14 25 26 21 25.2
20 19 20 14 25 17 28 11 12 6 18 6 16.3
2 2 2 1 8 3 2 32 3 5 10 6 6.3
12 27 16 6 12 15 4 8 5 5 8 6 10.3

41 53 42 35 38 48 46 41 29 29 38 34 39.5
32 15 55.5 74.2 92.8 65.6 90.6 53.3 96.8 38.5 0 0 51.2
0 10 39.2 84 195.9 226.7 147.5 165.7 86.8 11 0 0 80.6

295 200 257 212 224 244 227 253 219 232 204 165 227.7
49$       48$       57$       52$       117$     141$     112$     111$     98$       93$       89$       70$       86.4

1.07 0.91 1.11 0.98 1.04 1.09 0.96 1.16 0.97 0.81 0.91 1.05 1.0
20 38 0 0 0 0 0 41 68 87 51 55 30.0
0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.9 0.5 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.8 0.6

4 5 4 2 2 5 4 3 2 3 8 5 3.9

0 36 23 16 13 9 17 16 9 15 14 0 14.0
65 51 116 14 56 15 33 57 23 16 16 39 41.8
78.2 156.1 177.2 127.8 166.28 191 133.9 209.2 152.3 138.4 69.2 63.4 138.6
0.14 0.00 3.00 0.00 0.20 0.31 0.13 0.02 0.44 0 0.2 0.2 0.4
0.00 0.40 0.00 0.00 19.28 44.50 9..43 31.60 17.38 20.04 3.08 0.00 12.4
6 2 2 2 3 3 1 7 3 1 4 1 2.9

Public Works Department
August 2023
Prepared by:  Jamie Stanley
Date Prepared: 9 October 2023

2022

Cemetery Funerals

Utility Cut Repairs
Pot Hole Repairs

Storm Pipe RepairsSt
re

et
 &

 S
to

rm

Streets Swept (miles)
Pipe&Open Ditch Maint(1000-ft)

Ditch mowing (1000-ft)

Garage
Total Work Orders

 Total Fuel Cost (x1000)

Solid 
Waste

Refuse (x1000 tons)
Recyclables (tons)

Leaf-n-Limbs (x1000 tons)

2023

Radio, Electrical, Bldg 
ROW Mowing (ac)

City-Owned Lots Mowing (ac)Bl
dg

  &
 

G
ro

un
ds

Utility Cut Repairs

Solid 
Waste

Recyclables (tons)
Leaf-n-Limbs (x1000 tons)

Cemetery Funerals

St
re

et
 &

 
St

or
m

Pipe&Open Ditch Maint(1000-ft)
Ditch mowing (1000-ft)

Storm Pipe Repairs

Pot Hole Repairs
Streets Swept (miles)

 Total Fuel Cost (x1000)

Refuse (x1000 tons)

Garage Total Work Orders

City-Owned Lots Mowing (ac)

Hydrants Replaced/Fixed
Meter Install/Changed

Radio, Electrical, Bldg 
ROW Mowing (ac)

Bl
dg

  &
 

G
ro

un
ds

Water Repairs
Sewer Repairs

Monthly Highlights

Departments AVG

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
&

 
Co

lle
ct

io
ns

Utility Line Maint (1000-ft)
Lines Camera'd (1000-ft)

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
&

 
Co

lle
ct

io
ns

Utility Line Maint (1000-ft)
Lines Camera'd (1000-ft)

Water Repairs
Sewer Repairs

Hydrants Replaced/Fixed
Meter Install/Changed

Buildings & Grounds: Buildings & Grounds: Water in elevator shaft of Historic City Hall, preping Christmas lights and outlets, 
electrical for IT at City Hall, several street light issues and hanging Christmas lights on first block of Center St.  Mowing routes 
and RWs. The department was also involved in Taste of Wayne, Freedom Fest and Center Street art removal and installation.

Distribution & Collections: Call duty responded to 13 after hour calls--total of 23.5 hours. Completed 85 work orders.

Streets & Stormwater: Repaired 11 Utility cuts totaling 75.6 SY and 34 potholes, 315 trees in roadway, Ash St. SW 134 SY 
poured, 18,412 LF of small ditches cleaned, Swept 277 curb miles, Jet Rod 1,390 LF storm pipe, cleaned 3 Manholes and 9 Catch
Basins, Crews cleaned off over 1000 Catch Basins ahead of inclement weather, 15.9 Hours of Call Duty.


	Agenda 10-16-23
	Item A - Veterans Day Proclamation 2023
	Item C - Z-13-23
	Z-13-23 Public Hearing and Final Council Action Agenda Memo (Continuance)
	Z-13-23 Ordinance to Approve (Continuance)
	Z-13-23 Landuse Map
	Z-13-23 Ortho Map
	Z-13-23 Property Map
	Z-13-23 Zoning Map
	Z-13-23 Site Map

	Item D - SU-16-23
	SU-16-23 PH Agenda Memo FINAL
	SU-16-23 Aerial
	SU-16-23 PLU
	SU-16-23 Property Map
	SU-16-23 Zoning

	Item E - HOME-ARP Shelter Gudelines
	10-16-23 COUNCIL Agenda Item-HOME-ARP Underwriting and Subsidy Layering for NCS Unit Projects Guidelines
	Felecia Williams, Community Relations & Development Director

	Goldsboro Version Underwriting and Subsidy Layering Guidelines FINAL

	Item F - HOME-ARP SS Guide and App
	10-16-23 COUNCIL Agenda Item-HOME-ARP SS Program Guide and Application
	Felecia Williams, Community Relations & Development Director

	Goldsboro HOME-ARP Supportive Services Program Guidelines FINAL
	Goldsboro HOME-ARP-SS-Application FINAL
	8. TOTAL HOME-ARP SUPPORTIVE SERVICES FUNDS REQUESTED
	9. ALL APPLICANTS MUST INCLUDE:
	10. NON-PROFIT APPLICATIONS MUST ALSO INCLUDE:
	11. CERTIFICATION BY SIGNATORY:
	PART II: APPLICANT NARRATIVE
	PART III: AGENCY CAPACITY
	PART IV: FISCAL CAPACITY
	PART V: CoC Coordination

	PART IV: PROPOSED ACTIVITIES
	A. McKinney-Vento Supportive Services:
	B. Homelessness Prevention Services:
	C. Housing Counseling Services:

	PART V: HOME-ARP SUPPORTIVE SERVICES FISCAL INFORMATION
	PROJECT DELIVERY BUDGET
	PART X: CHECKLIST - HOME-ARP SUPPORTIVE SERVICES
	Part XI: Other Required Attachments
	For All Applications:



	Item G - Agenda 2023-10-16 Upset Bid E. Spruce & 706 E Spruce (Bynum)_0
	Agenda Memo 2023-10-16 Upset Bid Resol 704 & 706 E Spruce (Bynum)_0
	Resol Authorizing Upset Bid Process 2023-10-16 704 & 706 E Spruce (Bynum)_0
	2023-10-05 Terrance Bynum Offer and Checks Combined_Redacted
	2023-10-05 Melissa Gill Bynum Offer and Checks Combined_Redacted
	Map 706 E Spruce St
	Appraisal Card_3509-14-8085_706 E Spruce
	Appraisal Card-3509 14 8035 704 E Spruce

	Item H - Agenda 2023-10-16 Land Sale Concur 409 N Slocumb (Fairlene)_0
	Agenda Memo 2023-10-16 Concur Sale 409 N Slocumb (Fairlene)_0
	RESOL Concurrence Sale 409 N Slocumb (Fairlene) 10-16-23_0
	409 Slocumb St Resolution
	409 N. Slocumb Map
	Tax Card

	Item I - Agenda 2023-10-16 P3102 2023 JAG amend_0
	Agenda Memo 2023 GCC JAG Grant P3102 2023-10-16_0
	ORDINANCE P3102 2023 GCC JAG Grant 2023-10-16_0

	Item J - Agenda 2023-10-19 G1109 Amend Transport $100K Grant
	Agenda G1109 State Approp Grant 10-16-23_0
	ORDIN G1109 State Approp Grant 10-16-23_0

	Item K - Agenda 2023-10-08 Operating Amend FY24_0
	Agenda Memo Op Funds 2023-10-16_0
	ORDINANCE Op Amend 2023-10-02_0

	Item L - Chiller Replacement - Memo
	Item L - Chiller Replacement - RES
	Item M1 - Agenda Item for GEC HVAC
	Item M2 - resolution authorizing HVAC for GEC
	Item N1 - Agenda Memo Veterans Day Parade Temporary Street Closure
	Item N2 - Permit Application - 2023 Veterans Day Parade
	Permit Application - 2023 Veterans Day Parade
	XFM967D

	Item O - Signed Agenda Item Change Order for Sand Filter 2 Project RS JP
	Item P - 53.17 Update
	Item Q - B&C Appoints
	Item R - Monthly Departmental Reports
	Item R - Monthly Departmental Reports - Cover Page
	Community Relations and Development Monthly Report
	Community Relations and Development Monthly Report Addendum
	ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT MONTHLY REPORT - SEPTEMBER 2023
	Finance1 - 2023-09
	Finance2 - Cash & Investment FY2024-03-Sep
	9-30-23 

	Finance3 - Donations Quarterly Report FY2024-01-Sep
	FY23-24

	Finance4 - Budget Transfers Summary FY24 2023-03 SEP
	Transfers Sep

	Finance5 - Project Budget to Actual Monthly Report_2023-09  Sep_0
	Grants 2023-09 Sep

	Fire - September Report
	Inspections
	Paramount Monthly Report-Sept 2023
	Parks and Rec - September Monthly Report 2023 FLB
	Police Monthly Report September 2023
	Public Utilities Department Monthly Report JP
	Public Works Council Report- 2023 09




